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Message from

the Chairperson

EHA continues to excel in the

provision and delivery of public

health services to the five
Constituent Councils.

Forllowang Loal Gorsamimant sleobons
in Novembal 2014, Eastern Haallh
Alnor ity welcomed threa new Boarg
Mambes [Counalivrs Bithog, Evans
arsd Shatkfia) ang sevan prsvioys
membars {Cour Barnett, Cornish
Kncilnuch, Kenrmdy, Monosmue

Ryan and Whilingron) to the Bowd

of Management, These medm oers
represant 1ha five Constihlent Coundila
of EHA, Prospect, Wialkaryibe

Camipbeiitown, Burnside and Narwood],

myrisharm and St Pefars

As a promiment Local Govarmmani
ETHTHt SN porvidar i South
Augtralia, EHA has conlinued to
promote the benalite of vaco mation n
- . ehiminating e thimaltenng nfschous
Sue Whitagton gisEases. Public chinice h'-’::'. KEle
Chairperson o ol B
proqramimes rovide a oompdehemmive
site gl vagoines. This yeor a golay
i the manufachinng process of the
rnfuenzs vaccing resulied in lste
vary of the vaocing for climice ih
responas i repants of an increase
n Wheoping Cough (Partussiz) n
e semmitaiily EHA sxpspienaesd &
neetiGenbde o aans o gemanc fof this
vaCging: mportanthyi the Perllsss
vasuine was mads avadable frse o
pragriant wamien In' their third tmeaster
anct recommanded for nthes;
gantiparents and ofhes curers of
woungy childmen

EHA k5 diligsats e monitoang

ured enlgrcsmant ol putalie hesalth
standarks i food pramiaen. Righ rak
mamulaciored waler Sy Wil
Wals systenes, swirnming gools ang
personnl (roonmng and Hody on
premiti=z. This & an mpontant ILmcien
&EHA and = vital o publc safoty
Noe complinnee in Tood premises
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ool irwiee o B Rlgh pocenty. EHA
EMpitys a graduated anlbrcemant
respenss when dedling with mon
complionce, fonging o egucann
through to prosecution

Suppomed Residentinl Facites
[BRFY) apcommodnts sbme of the
most disabled and Vulrerable psoble
N our commiumty, EHA contingas 1o

e responsibie for-tha lcansing and
regulation of Standorag in SRES fof
orraht ol Cour et b e Oy
ol Liniey ona User-pays bass This
yesr 3l nudits were conducted on

B Unarnounc=d besig ) an effon 1o
ENcoUrnge peopretors and managers o
operate -aach fagifity 1o a high standam

The 5.A Pubdic Health Act 2011
requires: Councils o devialop public
health plans, consdstent witn the Smre
Putdle Healeh Plih, torashond 1o pubihc
ha=allh challEnges in thai comminites
Ir @ fne emmpit of Lo S e
coillabaeafion E | wpainped o
resgof ealih plan on bahal
of Constllsnl Counois, Tha Pl

hes récently besn adopted by all
Consiitypent Councile Tha Ragional
Pulslie Hesilth Plan comirmittes il
continiia to discuss mplsmantaton of
& shrfeges contmmed in e plan

EHA conlimids to excal i ihe proniscn
Ed dalwemy ol pubilip healih sericen
o §h e Constiiuent Councils

| yeeaibd] fiNe o theunk EHA Siaff and

the CEOor the diligent ond sensilive
manmer in which they deal with the
many tomplax Bsies which e tris
respansibility of EHA

It NgE DBEn F‘I1'_.-' |;-I-:-35ur-3 oW wih 2
dedirated Baard ann | thank them o
their spocat and Lommitmant
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About Eastern
Health Authority
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Eastern Health Authority (EHA) is a
regional subsidiary established under
Section 43 of the Local Government
Act 1999 which provides a range

of environmental health services

to the community on behalf of its
Constituent Councils in the eastern
and inner northern suburbs of
Adelaide, South Australia.

The Constituent Councils are: During 2014-15 EHA dscharged the premises. immunisation Senices are
emdranmental health responsibilities of provided to the City of Unleyona

City of Bumnsida [Burnshda) its five Constituent Councils uncder the user-pays basis. EHA also licenses
South Australian (SA) Public Health Act  and monitors SRFs on behalf of the

Campbelitown Gity Coungll 2011, Food Act 2001 and Supported City of Uinley.

[Campbedlicwn) Residential Faciifes Acl 1992, Services
include the provision of Immuonisabon

City of Norwood Payneham and services, hygiens and sanitation

Peters [NPSF) control, licensing and monitofing of

; SAFs, and monitoring of food safety
Gty of Prapeat. (Fraspéc) standards inchuding inspection of food
The Corporation of the Town of

Walkerville (Walkervilia)

Bumnside Campbelitown NPSP Prospect  Walkerville Total

Ratesbls Proparies 20 558 28 19,352 0824 3.506 75T
Population of Coundl 44 T34 51,844 36,800 20810 T.345 160,833
Number of Food Premises 280 &n 435 190 a5 12
Swimmang & Spa Pools Sites 12 3 n 1 3 a0
i . s " : , >
Supported Residentlal Faclities 3 2 1 2 ] A
Halrdressere/Baauty Treatment 1] 47 83 35 g 245
Public & Environmeantal Health Complainis B4 o BD 39 11 268
2014 BBIP Year 8 Enrolmant Mumbers B41 578 B52 182 T4 2128
2014 SBIP Year 8 Enrolmant Numbers 652 504 B33 175 &7 2,185
Immunisation Clinics = Chant Numbaers 1,058 1,188 1,387 276 200 4117
Iminunisation Chnics = Viaocines Ghwen 1.988 2,308 2820 4895 388 e

5
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Report

“There is nothing more important
than the health and wellbeing of
our local communities.”

v

Michas! Lo
Chiaf Exacutive Officer

YWhen developing this report
It weats - g oEpartune time 1o nat only
reffact on the aciues! work EHA has
unclertoken over the post year, but
ol ang tha
ricfertaka

Thess i nothing mare
thie heatth and wallbeing of our ksl
crmmiunitees, Health = a homan right
a3 vita!l resouarce for evaryday Ufe and o
ke foctor of sustamabillty. For ovar a
sl Govermment Nas ploye
uitnl e o AsLning 1

WEOIODEE TD 18 DOITHTILN DS

The firsd dterahon of o Bagional Public
Haalth Plan lor the EHA arsa has now
peen hnalied ond ndopted by 6l

5. It reflects on e
brcsady Fang ot BEMACES GUr oounclls
proyide which com

ahd wellDe: L of thiéd &

Conshituent Gou

Ong 15
plan is the- provision and fadiiitation of

ity ickanifiscd n the

Smimurly oy krevar heodl
ormibily alss exii
i ard responss 0
Ing =swes, Much of ths
ST 18 0 reiation 10 the pfevention ar
canirel of dissases and-is mandated
m legistaticn. EHA axiss a5 -3 Lok
Govermmant Regronal Subaidiary 1o
il prege important respons Bl ites o

pehall of s Constituent Councils

While many examples ol Begional
Subsidiones exist, moat
on Dusmess unchons such 85 wasts
CHinte
regional-nssociohons: EHAE the
'.'-'l":. HINMDE o an organsntion
huifitliryg & group of councila Public
|!'='|rr' -—_g.'"-.' va resconsiblities n

SUCH & FasIion

e Based

MANSEETHETL. OFf X158

Tha incra ISINGHY Complex snvronmeaniol

health field encompasses slaments

of Bickogics! @nd cham
crohelOq . BOSIoICHTY

iood fachng

SUiEnNEE
eI
. Maalin. promofion
preventon of communicable disgases

ard genefal public health’ principles

This divers 1y makes |t axirEmaly
gifficult for small ¢ s 1 My
simft expeErenced and Uiy Somo
noroas ol spheres of the profession

A S8 ANd amghs
foaus & Environmeentad Health. It =
SINECTUred 1o engure Inat’spe
Sl offer | hciend dalivary of all
4 Enidronmerial Heaalih

Ll Counciks
By b . 1 ol
profession

Pl b ity

rEpsed
BEDly resounces Wners ongd
gried and mamninin contruny
f 2ervices to cover fof staff fliness
o timoves. The altgmmtive 18 o
essionally Lnsomee stafi
working in ralative sclaton

Winen

W King cooparad

s Wy o=

Hiy o Mg

sthed il

[ ['ed W T el # 0 sean and corshiiared o
peri in the ||-:|-'J the potential i

Wl issues and

implernent broaber health policies

".‘.l'.-l""? O OrEgler viDice wWhan .'II'-.]"I'II.?

with leger govenment bodiss; having

the required expeanence ond idesa 1o

cieal with BEMErn ) IESUesE A 1e

BOOMCETE [

the shanng

mnd Gther resourcen

SCRHpImant, TaCHINES

| belleve workng within o stiucture
that nurtures and suppors efaciive
collaboration Relps promots & dyriamic
pnd committed workloroe, whare
knowledge ang volue are confinually
created. In this regard the iImportancs
of tha, o snial onel el SUppo
niable o stoff Dy exparts and
it B
FEALIE OF SUcH
Suppart hesn I thee patential lo
Bullg organisational cepacity hrough
the ransfer or poclng of knoy
buit asn in the assstmnce i oo

In workicrca ratantion and stability

The Annunl Report is a0 overview of
the work we oo o

pomploxiies

when del

back al Ihe prote

which EHA stz

mgh volume of comphex Esues and
sTEGEnCY vestigolions, whilst olso
managng our rouling 'wock makes me
sxtremghy proud wnd privieged o be
the CED of thss amanisation

I singeraly thank afl stofl for hai
pommiited conmbutans (o the
grpjanisation and o ths Board of
Morogerment oo thisir interest i
Publlc Healih =

2 onpomng suppon
o the staf of EHA
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“Health is a human right,

a vital resource for everyday
life and a key factor of
sustainability.”

7
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Board of Management 2015

EHA is a body corporate, governed by a Board of
Management comprising of two elected members from each
Constituent Council. The Board met six times during the year
to consider EHA's business. The table below details Board

Member attendance.

Table 2 Number of meetings attended by individual Board Members.

July 2014 - November 2014 Board Member Meetings Attended
City of Norwood Payneham & 5t Paters Cr S Whitingtan 2
Cr G Knoplouch 2
City of Bumnsida Cr P Cernish 1
Cr A Moncealx 2
Campbalitown City Coungll Cr J Kannedy 1
Cr M Ryan 2
City of Prospect Cr K Bamett 2
Cr A Dixan 2
Corporation of the Town of Walkervilla CrC Wigg 2
Cr S Bernardi 1]
Novemnber 2014 - June 2015 Board Member Meetings Attended
Clty of Norwood Paynieham & St Peters Cr S Whitington 4
Cr G Knobizuch 4
City of Burn=ide Cr P Comish 4
Cr A Monceaux 4
Campibalitown Clty Council Cr J Kennedy 3
Cr M Ryan 3
City of Prospect Cr K Barnett 3
Cr T Evans 4
Corparation of the Town of Walkerviila Cr M Bishop 3
Cr D Shetiitfe 3

annual report 2014/15




Table 3 Number of times the Board of Management considered an item 1o
be excluded from public discussion

During 2014-15, the Board considerad ong item whane it was necessary 1o exclude the public from discussion
The table balow identifies the grounds on which the Board made this determination.

Local Government Act 1859 Dascription Number of
Times Lisad
Section 20{3)(a) Information relating to the persona! affairs one
of a person

Four requests for Information under the One request was received in June
Freed om Of Freedom of Informiation Act 1991 were 2015 and at the time of this report it
recaived during 201415, was being processed in accordance

Information with the FOI Aot

Thres requests wers reviewed and
access to he requested documents
within the scope of the applications
ware granted in full,

10
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Board of Management
as at 30 June 2015

City of Norwood
Payneham & St Peters

-5}

L L
| !
L
Cr Sua Whitington G Gary Knoblauch

{Chaipeann)

Corporation of the Town
of Walkerville

Cr Marylou Bshop Cr David Shetllitfe

City of Burnside

B
2 4
[
Cr Peter Cornilsh

Cr Armg Moncealx

Depity Chair)

Campbelltown City Council

Cr Mar(jha Hyan L Jigkin Kanmety

annual report 2014/15

Prospect City Council

)

Cr krstma Bamett Cr Tetlrz Evars




EHA comprises three functional areas —
Stru ctu re anvir_nl_'imantai health, im_rn_unisatiun and
administration. The administration team,
i led by the Chief Executive Officer, supports
a n d St aﬁl n g the activities of the environmental health
and immunisation teams. The Team Leader
Environmental Health and Team Leader
Administration and Immunisation have
responsibilities for achieving the Annual

Business Plan ObjECtl"nfES relevant to thelr
functional area.

Environmantal
Health
FTE AD

Canstitugnt Board of
Councils Managemant

Immunisation
FTE3.8

md RPHP Committes

Administration
FTE48

CED Perfurmance
Roview Committos

Table 4 Number of total Total Number of FTE

employees and FTE Employees

as at 30 June 2015 Adninistration 6 a8

Staffing as at 30 June 2015 comptised

a total of 32 employess [18.4 FTEL Immunisation 14 a6
Environmental Health 11 an
Total 3 174

12
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Annual Business Plan

EHA develops an Annual Business Plan for the purpose of
transiating strategic directicns into action and sets measures
to assess its performance.

This core activities that have been undertaken to deliver on
the obiactives of the plan are detailed in this report.

Charter Review

A review was undertaken and a revised Charter is currently
being considered by the Constituent Councils.

annual report 2014/15
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Finance Audit
Committee

Members of EHA's Audit Committée includes: Lisa Scinto,
Presiding Member, Clawdia Gotdsmith, Independent Member;
and Cr Talis Evans, Independent Membes, The commitiee
met on two occasions during the year. The Committee’s work
included reviewing the audited financial statements reviawing
a draft long tarm financial plan and consgidering Extamal Audit
recommendations.

Financial Statements

The Audited Financlal Statements for the year ending
30 Juna 2015 are provided on page 40. They show an
Operiing Surplus of $112.674.




Immunisation
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Immunisation continues Public Immunisation
to be a safe and Clinics
effective way to prevent =i poices bon spponiment besed and srop n

public clinics to residents of its Conmatituent Councils and

the Spread Df many Iife gne client councll, A renge of clinle venues, days and times

- " - ensure conveniant altematives for our residents requiring
threatening infectious mmuniestion,
i A total of 5,105 clients were provided with 8,702
diseases. Ajoalof 8105 ceni wer povded wine 72
2013-14, with the main contributing factor being the delay in
the dalivery of the flu vaccine in March 2015,

EHA plays an important e poviced caichup vaccinsiion program appointmens

to 101 newly-armived families from overseas, Records

role in the maintenance eOCrTenanded Anctralar Bormeismsmion Praora Sehile
Of appropriate Bs aresult ::; thﬁ;apmnhﬁmm 91 childran Mme'r'lcedl
= 5 - g calch up programs within our public clinics.
immunisation rates in

the community through

the delivery of its Public

Clinics, Schools and

Workplace Immunisation

programs.

Graph 1 A three year linear trend representation of the client
attendance at the immunisation clinics

a00
BOO
700
GO0
f:l'ﬂ'l__—_ .... RS
400
300
200
100
PR ERARSGELEabgECEarEEEELMgREEsrs R0
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Graph 2 A three year comparison of the number of vaccines
delivered at public clinics

1600
1400
1200
1000
BOO
B00
400
200
]
JUL AUG SEP ocT MOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN
All Public Clinic Vaccines All Pubdic Clinle Vaccines All Public Clinic Vaccines
Total 201213 Total 2013/14 Total 201415

16

J
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Table § Where our clients choose to be vaccinated

Whaere cllents attended [clinic venue by %)

Where clients  Number of E _ 2
Come from Clients from 3 2 Total %
[council area) council area E ‘E E E‘ E -E
-
_ s 2
L]
Burnside 1,058 30% 4% 52% 1% 2% 1% 100%
Campbelitown 1,196 5% 30% 58% 1% 2% 3% 100%
NPSP 1,387 4% 43 87% 1% 2% 2% 100%
Prospoot 276 9% 1% 50% 37% 7% 2% 100%
Walkerville 200 4% 1% 67% 29 26% 1% 100%
Unley 743 8% 2% 24% 0% 2% B4% 100%
Other 245 8% 10% 3% 6% 4% 35% 100%
Total Number
of Clients Ppls

Table 5 shows where

our residents choose

to be vaccinated. It
demonstrates that many
residents from each
Constituent Council travel
to other council clinics
due to their suitability.

As an example 37%

of Prospect residents
chose to attend the clinic
at Prospect while 50%
attended the NPSP clinic
and 7% attended the
Walkeryville clinic.

In response 1o increasing incidents of Perfussis (whooping
cough), the Pertussis vaccine was added to the Mational
Immunisation Program Schedule in March 2015 for pregnant
women in thelr thirg trimester.

Vaccination ol pregnant women with the Perlissis vaccine
{Boostrix or Adacel) hea bean shown to be effactive in
preventing Pertussis in newbom infents via the transfer of
maternal antibodies in utero,

It is pleasing to note that although there has been an increase
of 4,974 (46%) Pertussis cases in Australis compared 1o
2013-14, the incresse In the Constifuent Council areas has
bean much lower (8%}

\
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School Based
Immunisation Program

Graph 3 A three year comparison of total
vaccines administered at schools within
the Constituent Council areas"

(2014 Calendar year)

During the 2014 school based immunisation program (SBIF),

14000

77 visilte wene mada to 21 high schools where a tolal of 12000
13,258 vaccines were adminsterad o Year § and 9 students
This was an increass of 2,977 (28%) when compared to the 11,859
pravious year and was a result of a change in the National 10000
Immunisation Program for Yesr 8 students, expanding the 10.281
HPV vaccine to include male students and the addition of the ¥
dTpa vaccing, BOOO
The 2014 SBIP involved administering:
« three doses of Humean Papliiomavires (HPV) vaccing B000

to all Year B students
- one dosa of Varicella (chicken pox) vaccing to all 4000

Year B students
+ gne dose of dTpa vaccine fo all Year 8 students i
= three doses of Human Papillomavirus (HPV) vaceine

to Year 8 male students

0

a2

2013 ama

Table 6 A two year comparisen of vaccine types

Table 6 compares e
administered for the SBIP for 2013 & 2014°

the vaccine

types delivered  coniaee 1ep 2 30 I I S S B B
g:';r_'::she 8:182151':1: Burnside 582 191 344 1,398 2,083 522 1,084 2693 3521
an or

Campbalitown 714 234 328 1309 2086 441 925 2,696 35,349

each Constituent
Council area.

NPSP Bd4 180 348 1430 2283 431 1,013 2,785 3845

Prospect 208 90 118 418 778 148 281 BB4 1977
Unley 254 48 147 482 197 163 361 948 TOS
Walkorville 62 20 36 158 702 53 123 283 BB
Total 2,604 VE4 1,322 6,195 8,149 1,818 3,787 10,281 13,258

Table 7 A three year
comparison of the number of
school visits®

Table 7 shows the number of school
visits provided for the SBIP. The
number of school visits fluctuates
with changes in the National

2012 213 2014

School = .
Visits ™ 7  Immunisation Program.
yrhuralE T

.
Figmers: retating 10 Acainide Gy Coundd| have besn remowd for cOMparnilag pomoess

18

J
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Worksite
Immunisation Program

EHA ig commilted 1o providing a competitive and afficient
sarvice to ensble workplaces 10 iImmunise their stoft against
the Seasonal Influenza Virus,

The iate armval of the Influenzs vaccng in'March 2015 due to
issues with the manufacturng process affected all suppliers.
This placed significant pressure on EHA staff to daliver the
worksite program in a condansed tima frame.

Between 31 March 2015 and 4 June 2015 a total of 88
worksia viaits wemn delivered, The total number of vacoines
administered inoreased by 762 (18%) to 4.900 compared with
the previous vear (Tatibe 8],

Thare was an increasad interest in dTpa vaccine by many
wotkplaces providing cars for infants as well as the increased
uptoke from staff of tha influenzs vaccine:

Table 8 A three year comparison of the total
number of vaccines administered at worksites

Vaccing type 21213 201314 2014-15
Infiienza 4,673 408 4,775
Hepatitia A 0 15 2
Hapatits B 34 1 3
Hepahis A& B 23 Td 42
dip= a2 29 i)
Total 4,768 4,138 4,900

Graph 4 A three year comparison of the combined demand

for all iImmunisation services

£000

1000

Lo E oL oL = .= m e * o E . =
cEG8CREIE3CFE 28R 0 CE5RG8REREIFEE
RphpRrreevibabe 20BRddaiasidalisacsbogoghe
Il Cinic Vaccines [l SBIP Vaccines Worksila Vaccines
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Public and
Environmental
Health




Introduction

“The world is
changing

and public health
iIssues are evolving
as our societies
diversify.”

Environmental Health addresses zll 1he
physical, chemical, and biological factors
external to a person, and all the refated
factors impacting behaviours. It encompasses
the assessment and control of those
environmental factors that can potentially
affect health: It s targeted towards preventing
disease and creating health-supportive
anvironments. This definition excludes
behaviour not related 1o environment, as well
as behaviour related to the social and cultural
environment, and genetics,'-

Waorld Health Orgamisation (WHO), 2012.

The world is changing and public health
IssUes are evolving as our societies diversiiy.
The South Australian Public Health Act 2071
aims to provide a modernised, flexible,
legislative framework to respond to bath
traditional and contemporary public

health Issues.

Complaints and
Referrals

EHA 1aceived 259 public nesith retated complamianetemis
¥ Stole Govemmen| agenes As oyiilined
il Taiple 9 the rumber recaivad represants a amall decigasa
B wihen compated o 2013-14

From e pulilk

Déecremies it animal k GepnQ, nn ey ard hdiesandoni
substances comploifits were noted. The hismibier of
complalinta mn hesd thred calsgones this o & comparabila
o 201213 figutes [Tabla'9)

Tha numizer of sanitation complaints rceniad = oompatabls
10 e previnus year (Takifad), A high propartion of these
somplaints (639%) related to'excessive vegetaticn and
scoumulation ol matatisis-and did nat conatituta 'ham o
nadih’ unda tha 34 Pubhc Haalth Act,' 2011

Iny frver hoasding and fve 2avare domestic squalor mintters
Ivestigated by Officars, o broach al the Genaral Duty wnders
the SA Fubic Haalth Act, J01 71 was Satarmined

Thads conas wiare all managed uging tha Foot in tha Docr -
Slanping towaths solutions tor
EevatR domestic soualor in South Austalia (A Guitelna)
The Ao e et e Goaaclalines alltsed 1o a miur
gisciplinary appuoach 10 be ol by ERS and other
Govammean and non-Governmanl noanci@a [o résalve

eoive Inpidents of

whibre oossinie e Bou ol sgualor #nd hoading

104 annual report 2014/15

T 34 Paolic Haalth 'Act 207171 Notices 1o sacuns
commplinnes with the Geneend Duly, Section 2200 Yo ol tha
5A Pubtic Heatth Act 2077, mvoiving o Gefious i

asets domesitic soulon wers sssued. With the assiutonce
e Gonternmant ond nof-Govet remint ngenciss, there wos
woluntory: aotion Lo resmesdy 1N souakd conditions

EHA conlinuea 1o igad the Esstom Hoarthng and Squastn
Group (the Greipl, The Group conlinued [no s thin
subcessiu) yanr and met koyur iimes. The purposé of the
Omup i o provide a collabSrmtive fofum for Bvirenmantal
Heallh Odficars (EHDS) represantibg ning Eastern Metopeditan
Coyncits and rapras b from Gevernman! and non

13 sualor and hoseding and
SHNCES ONd MaSDUNCEs o i bo fenohel these issusa, A
total of 104 wedtdr gontrl CoOmplanta wers regened which
wos comparabie i ihe previous (wo vears (Tabis 91 Az
représanted in Graph 5 06 rskated 10 rodent ativity
Chetraronem wedetml ion, accomulaled rahies o poor poulity
kenping wera tha commaon ransons rescants complainnd
ol rodent aCivity




Graph 5 A graph llustrating
the proportion of the

types of vector coritrol
complaints received

YWhere EHOS do not have sub
svidence 1o/ icentity ' ihe primuary Souce
of harbourage. information & issued

1% | r.-r::.qw:r.- mng fiomes. Laites hase
basn effactvis i notifying naighbouring
resaems of potantia] Sen

"‘5:".‘.'H'I Ol miEEE ifnvdiving TN

wekrs reEyEd g the year 1 was

fecassary 10-5s0e B prafiminary Notice
o Sacue Complianos with 1he Genamd
Duty whisis inaderpuale maosies wers
Lk by thi propesty owner 10 pravim]

e fressdling of MmoSauiines

Table 9 A three year
comparison ot the

type of public health
complaints received

201213 2013-14 2014-15

Animal Keaping 12

MNotfiable Diseose

Sanitation

Vector Control

Waste Control

Ajr Quality

Water Quality

Hazardols Substances

Othed

Totnl
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Table 10 A three year
comparison of the types
of hazardous waste
complaints received

Type of Complaints 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Asbestos € 2
Clandestine Laboratory 4 2
Collection of 2 2
Syringes

There ware six hazordous waste
complaints involving the investigation
of two asbestos Esues. two clandestine
drug laborator|es and the collaction of
syringes at two properties (Table 10).
One complaint involved a Category

A Clandesting Orug Laboratary
operating at a premizses which was
under construction 1o become a food
business. Tha improved powers and

tocks under the 5A Public Hasth

Act, 2071, enabled EHOs 1o Issue an
immediate verbal emergency Notice
prevanting antry to tha pramises.
This verbal Notice was followed by

a confimation of the emergency
Motice specifying the requirements to
ensura the premises ware no longer

@ risk to public heallh which included
deconiamination and testing.

Table 11 A three year 201213 201314 2014-16
comparison of the number of  campyicbacter 109 188 154
re n I 5
ported notifiable disease 35 P B
Tha SA Public Health Act 2077
prescribes a Iist of diseases that are Loglonelosls 3 4 0
notifiable to SA Health Communicable Cryptosporidiosis B a7 13
Disease Control Branch (COCHE) (Table
11}, Notification of these diseases allow  Hepatitis A 0 0 0
for survaillance and nvestigation to be
undartaken to protect the community Rotovirus 36 & 31
from the risk of infectious dizsasse.
Pertussis 52 38 41
Saimonalia and Campyiobacier Two pecpie who conlfracted the

“There has been
a considerable
increase of
Salmonella over
the last two
years. This is
consistent with
a state wide
increase

in cases.”
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conlinue to remain the most frequently
reported lood bome diseases. There
has been o considerable increase n
confrmed coses of Seimanella over the
last two years. This is consistant with a
statewide increase in cases

EHA's EHOs pay particular attention o
the gafe handling of raw eggs during
Food Safaty Assessments. Despite
thase efforts, 35 cases of Saimonalia
linked to six food businesses required
Investigation. | appears that the
majority of outbreaks were o result

of the consumption of contaminated
raw egg contained in uncookied or
lightly cooked foods. Steragas of food
containing raw eggs al mappropriate
temparatures which pemils tha
growth of Salmonefa may have bean a
coniributing factor together with oross-
contamination during food preparation
{i.&. transter of Salmonela from the
suface of the egg to other surfaces
and/or foods).

2

Cryptosporidiosis infection swam in
public swimming pools within EHA's
Constituent Counclls whilst infected,
CDCB requested a 'precautionary’
investigation of thesa pools be
undertaken, Both public pool sites
Invedved wers connacted to an Ultra
Vialet (LV) systam, The investigation
reveslad that the LUV syslem al one
pool site was disconnected for a short
period of time due to maintenance. It
was during this period the confirmed
case swam in the pool. A precautionary
decontamination was consequantly
undertaken. The pool was reopenad lor
public use following the confirmation
that levels ol chlorination wene within
the paramaters set by the 54 Public
Health (General) Reguiations 2013, No
further confinmed cases were received
and no further action was required.




Monitoring and
S i I I
] A total of 51 high-rigk manufactured for & targe numbar of high counts was
CDG hng TD WE rs water systems (HRMWS) were primarily responsible for the decrease
rm registerad at 25 sites within EHA in high counts. Tha last reportad high
an d wa This number of systems and sies count recenwved was in Saptembear 2074,
has steadily decreased over a three sugaesting the dosing at supply has
water SyStem S year pericd (Table 12). The decrease been successiul in imifing the growih
can be attributed o the conversion at Legionalla,
of warm water systems to hot walar o
systams, which minimises the risk of In responze to high count notfications,
and ars no longer classified the responsiole persons were
as a HAMWS under the new SA Public ~ contacted m::"m;ﬂdlﬂiﬂ .?;fm
Health (Legionedal Regulations 2013, was taken to shut down
decontaminate the systems.
Atotal of 23 cooling towers and 41 Retesting was carmied out to ensuré
wanm water systems were inspacted decontamination was successiul
{Table 12). Ten follow-up inspacticns s
were required af six cooling towers Thn_r_a Were 1o Lm dissass
and two warm water sites due to natifications received from CDCB.
madeguate staff training and missing
. Thres Compliance Motices under
CORAPILON, the SA Public Heaith Act 2011 were
Samples taken from routine waber issied to two cooling tower sites for
testing resulted in 13 high counts of failing to comply with the 54 Public
Legionsila, representing a 46% and Health (Legionehs) W‘
72% decrease when comparad to 2013. Non-compliance issues were
2013-14 and 2012-13 respectively related to inadequate sysiem plans
{Table 12). and procedures, access 1o cooling
towers-and biccide failing to circulats
At one site the continuous dosing of throughout the systém within
the water supply with a low level of spacified timelrames,
chigrine was introduced in 2013, This
site, which was previously responsible
Table 12 A three year 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
comparison of the number
or registered high risk Number of Sites 48 31 25
manufactured water systems
and the number of routine Egmt.'“ HMWS B1 61 51
and follow-up inspections
undertaken and Lag.-bna-'.'a MNumber of system g4 &7 84
high count test results inspections
*Docreass 1y einber of HAMWE imsoections Number of follow-ups 4 1 a
du Yo mgnifinaal number of oooling tower
de-nagsiered during 2012-13.
High count lest resulls a7 24 13
Compliance notices Q 2 3
diseasa 5 4 0
natifications from CDCB
24
—
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Public Swimming
Pools and Spas

Areview of the inspaction frequency

of public swimming facilities was
unclertaken during the year dus to
limited officer availability, It was
determined that cutdoor pocls would
be inspected annually unless there was
a history of non-compliance n which
casa they would be Inspected two
fimes par year, Indoor swimming poots
and spas continue to be inapected
twice a year. The decision was basead
on outdoor swimming pocls baing open
to tha public for a shorter pariod of tima
{late spring and summer) in comparsan
o indoor spas and pools availabla for
usa throughout the year.

Al swimming, spa and hydrotherapy
pools located at 32 sites (Table 13)
were agsassed against the standards
prescribed in the S4 Public Health
(General) Regulations 2013, A total of
10 sites required follow-up Inspeciions,
with three sites requining thres or mon
fellow-up Inspactions.

Thres complaints involving two pool
sites wara received ragarding unclean
change rooms and showens and a
bathar expenencing skin imitaton
after swimming in a pool (Tabla 13).
All complaints were investigated and
the standard of cleaniiness and the
disinfection lavets wers satistactory.

Complianoa Notices under the 54
Fublic Hoafth Act 2077 were issuad 1o
three sites for failing to comply with

the Regulations. Non-compliance
issuas ralated 10 falling or
mattunctioning auto-dosing aquipmant,
insulficient record keaping and
Inadequate disinfection kvels,

Table 13 A three year
comparison of the number
of routine and follow-up
inspections conducted

at spas, swimming, and
hydrotherapy pools, and the
number of Cryptosporidiosis
notifications received

Following a routing inspection a
Complianca Notice was issued to

an indoor poolfspa site for falling to
comply with the SA Public Health
{General) Regulations 2013, The
malfunctioning of the alactronic
analysing and dosing ecuipmant
resulted in high pH and combined
chiorine levels. The poo! and spa was
closed for a peniod of 10 days requiring
three consecutive follow-up inspections
to ensure compliance. During this time
Officers Idenfified that cyanuric aoid
was added to tha indoor pool which is
pronibited under the SA Public Health
(General) Beguiations 2073, Advice and
recommendations were sought from SA
Health to account for this ermor. Officers
requested the pool operators undergo
training o improve their skilks and
knowledge and maintain pool records
and detall corractive actions.
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201213 2013-14 2014-15
Number of Sites 28 bat 30
Mumber of Pools/Spas 42 42 43
Inspections Number of ad i 71 f
Pools/S {29 sites) S8 (20 sites) 32 sites)
w*ﬁ"i‘* 10 (7 sites) 16 (8 sitee) 20 (10 sites)
Complaints 4 1 B
Q}phﬁpﬂrﬂmﬁs 1 o 3
notifications

One lication related 1o the

Waste Control Ao A DA

Systems

EHA assessed two new waste control
system apolications invoiving grey
water and a septic system with sub
surface afffiuent disposal against the
SA Public Health Act (Wastewater)
Regulations 2013,

water system. The application was
refarrad to SA Health, Office of
Technical Register and the Conatiuent
Councll for review and comment. A
review of the sail report and site plan
was conductad and the application
was approved, subjact to conditions
outiined in the spproval notice

Mo complaints wene racaived during
the raparting pariod.




Personal
Grooming,
Body Art and
Health Care

There are no formal requirements for
business operators to notity Local
Govermmaenl that they are conducling
an activity that is regulated under the
54 Pubiic Health (General) Ragulations
2013. The absence of a formal
natification procass hinders the ability
for councils o maintain an acorate
regyister of the number of persanal care
and body art (PCBA) premises. During
the year a review of the PCBA register
was conducted, This involved manually
checking EHA's PCBA register with
the telephone directory. This method

Is resource intansive and difficult to
keap up 1o date, As shown in Table 14
there was an increasa in the number of
acupuncturists, tattooists and beauty
premises following the raview of the
PCEA register,

“there was an
increase in

the number of
acupuncturists,
tattooists and
beauty premises
following the
review of the
PCBA register.”

J
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Table 14 A comparison of the Acupuncture Tattooist Beauty
number of PCBA premises Provious PCBA 11 4 -
prior and after the review rogister
Curment PCBA 20 i 108
register
L i 1 All acupunclurists and tattooists, premises continue 1o use re-usable
Tatto dﬂl5t5I including premises recently identifisd equipment. Both of these premises
were inspectad during the year, required calibration records of the
prﬂ cedura Thee level of compliance with the autociove 1o ensure re-usable
kﬂﬂWlEdQE and Regulations was of a high standard skin penstration equipment is
amopngst all acupuncturtsts. However, effactively sterilsed.
Standﬂrd ﬂf Officers ientified many acupuncturists ) _
l I were unclear of their Immunisation A t':ﬁ’ five W"'D‘_mh;“ﬁfﬁ received
clieaniiness was status for Hepatitis B, Educational regarding inappropriate hygiene
material was disttibuted and practices and a poor standard of

consistently
satisfactory.”
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recommendations wera mada for stafl
o check ther Immunisation status and
if required obitain a boostar vaceination.

Tattooists’ procedural knowledge

and standard of gleanliness was
consistently satisfactory, During this
year's routine inspections it was found
that all but two a0 pramises usa
gingle-usa equipment 1o minimiza

the spread of infection. Two tattoa

cleanfiness at four beauty premises.
Threa of these premises required
further follow -up inspactions,
Educaton and information on best
practice and reference to the Guidslines
on the Safe and Hygienic Practice of
Skin Pengtration were provided.,
One complaint was recelved allsging
a tattooist was inappropriately
disposing wasts materials Into a
kartaide councll bin.




Food Safety
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Food Safety
Inspections,
Complaints,
Audits and
Enforcement

EHA adminksters the Foodg Act 2007

in conjunction with the Food Salaty
Standards to protect the public

from food borne ilnass and
associaled rizks. llinesses caysad

by the =als and consumption of
unsafe food are preventable through
education, ragulation and

intarvention from EHOs during regular
inspections and oudits. Consumens
have the right to expect the food they
eat is protected from microbiclogical
contamination, free from foreign matter
and iz not subjected to poor food
handling practices. As a regulator

at food hyglens and safety, EHA is
commitied 1o ensuring that proper fiood
zafety standnrds are applisd through
approprinte surveilance

and enforcement.

Food Safety

As at 30 June 2015, a total of 1,240
known food premisas were cperaling

The Fremework allows classification
of food businesses or indusiry sectors

H within EHA's jurisdiction, which is a into one of four priority rsk categories.
lnspe Ctlﬂl‘IS small ncrease (32) when comparad to These range from tha highes! risk
the previous year. Tokeaways, cafes, prionty P, theough to the lowest
and restaurants confinue to be the risk peigrity P4,
predominant types of food businesses.
A minimum and meximum inspecton
Although there was o small ncrease frequency range is appled to each risk
in the number of food businesses, clessification. The frequency range
the food business register required sllows for inspections to either be
conlinual updating due to new increased or decreased depending
natifications and closures. During the on whethar compliance is satisfactony
year, B3 businesses closed and 187 during tha Inspection.
food business nobifications, advising
of a new food business or change of Food businesses classified as P4 are
ownership, wera mgaﬂ with BHA considared 'low risk’ as the typas of
food handied are uniikely to contain
The commencemeant of the Soulh pathogenic organisms and does not
Australian Food Business Fisk undergo any further processing. The
Classification (FBRC) profiling majority of these foods are shelf stable
framework (the Framework) took effect and pre-packaged. These businesses
from 1 July 2014, The Framework i ore inspactad upon notification to
designed to provide a tool to classify determine whether there has besna
business types on the basis of food changa In activity or a complaint has
safety risk. The Framework reflacts the been received.
risks inherent to the product/process,
risk controk, =5 well as association of As ghown in Tabla 15, the majority of
the risk with past food bome ilness food businesses are nisk classified as
cutbreak infarmaticn. F1, with tokeaways and restaumnts
being the main types of businesses
within thiz classification.
Table 15 Number of food Ll P2 P3 P4 Total
businesses, food inspections  Numberof food £33 385 g0 109 1.940
and follow-up inspections as  businesses
per risk classification Routine 535 278 26 0 840
inspections
Follow-up an 103 5 1 480
Inspections
2
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Table 16 The percentage P P2 P3
of businesses routinely Estirmated nuriber of businesses 535 279 28
inspected as per their risk routinely inspected

classification Estimated % of businesses 85 70 43

tinely inspected
With the exclusion of P4 businesses, Fny Inon

a totaf of 1,048 food premizes are
required 10 be inspectad. A total of
1,435 inspections ware undertaken,
af which B40 wera routine inspections
and 480 were follow-up Inspactions
[Tabla 17)

As rapresented in Tabie 16, high risk
P1 businesses accountad for the

fargest proportion of routine
nspactions undartaken
Table 17 A three year Type of Inspection 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
comparison of the number of o = &id
routine, follow-up and fit-out e
inspections Undertaken and Follow-up 428 555 480
complaints received

Complaint 83 B2 28
EHA's food safety enforcement phe!
philesophy is to conduct thorough
routine inspactions and follow-up Pro-opening/Fit-out 2 9 L
inspections 1o ensure non-compliances
are rectified and eppropriate lood Total 1.207 1.426 1435

safety standards are maintained,
Routine and follow-up inspections
are oppoartunities for EHOs to provide
advice and Information 1o food
businesses, to ensure food safaty
practices are implemented daily

and permaneantly

Thers was a 14% decrease in the
number of follow-up nspactions
conductad when compared to tha
pravious year (Table 17). This reduction
is pleasing 1 note and baliaved to

be associzted with previous work o
improve standards in fobd businesses.

Table 18 the percentage of P P2 P3

businesses requiring a follow=  goymated number of businesses ar 103 5

up inspection as per their risk  requiring follow-ups

classification Estimated % of businesses requiring 57 29 8
follow-ups

The number of businesses requiring

a follow-up Inspection has a direct
comalation with the inherent rick of the
particular premise as represanted in
Table 18.

—___/7
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Enforcement

o The vast majority -~.r bl '-'-:l'-r-';.*-—::-' Table 19 Legal action taken
2 P O B o) as per risk classification

thar knowladge gnd ongifa Pugh rek b Table 16 datoks

rachon, pealad non-Complancs | ML LS =S requrang a

soribinues and furthes il achon 5 ¥ 11 Ieda! anted oeoording to thak
fegquired i Eome nstances. Legal tHisk categany

achon may taks tha oem of writte

Wamings. Improvemant hotices Warning Letter
Prahibition Orders, Expiations o Imiprovement
Moticon

Prosacutions

Oifences

graduated and proportionats Esponss g
Exjpisted

I be appled 1o st re-oocoErming
oF vary sarcus ood saf ty Dreaches

Graph & damonsirales ths graodunodes]

Prohibition

Ordars
FESDONEE 1D NIt Camaenl S

Gfﬂph 6 Asshown m Table 20, theme was a significant decreasa in the

total aumber ol Improvament Notices ssued, The parcantage

A graph illustrating the ithiss ooty b i e i i s
gra du atEd res‘pﬂ'nse tu Imptevemant Maicas /il acoounied for the majority o
enforcement under the istisiate b et lsadoliy pindind

Fﬂﬂd ACf MT il 10 &4 000 Dusinesses | iahs 21

PROHIBITION ORDERS (3)

Table 20 A three year comparison of the
percentage number of Improvement
Notices issued based on the number of
routing inspections

2012-13 2013-14 2014815

Routing imspections Ty £ Bdpn

Total number of
Improvemant
Naotices issuad

MNumber of
businesses issued
with Improvemant
Hoticas

% of busingsses
requiring
Improvamant
MNotices

LETTER OF WARNING {18}
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complionce H
CS5ES have e
& in-gach of t

history aff non=cormg

b i 1a fences lssued whan

Expantion Notie dis o the conteaual

&6 o CrETnarEson of

of " 3 ot il
=5 thal a

S CONTMUES

: past thres vears. | der
ST ] PO standard of claan
0 b8 the Mosl Cormeminn -"‘-rl-.|.|-:|=

offance

sl i Expintion Nollc

maund {Table 2

Table 21 A three year companison of the
number of Expiation Notices issued, total
number of expiable offences and expiable
income received

Table 22 A three year comparnson of the
percentage of Expiation Notices issued per
routine inspection

2012-18 2013-14 2014-15

201213 2013-14 2014-15

Total rumibar 25 18
of Expiation
Notices issued

Total mumbor
of Expiable
Oftences

Total amount

Rowtine &5 rad adn
inspactions

Mumber of
husinessas
ssuod with
Expiation
Nolices

Expiation
MNotices as %
of inspections

Table 23 A three year comparison of the types of expiation offences issued for

breaches under the Food Act 2001

Offence Type

2012-13 2013-14

Food past its usa b

Skills and kinowladge

Food siorage

Food) processing

Food display

Haalth ang hygiene ol lood handiers

Geneml dulies of Iood busness

Storage of garbage

Faikire to comply with zn Improvement Nofiosa
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The raquirement to issue Prohibition Orders to food
businesses dacreased when compared to the previous

twio years [(Graph 7). Prohibition Orders were served 1o two
restaurants for serious offences relating to significant vermin
and cockroach activity, and a food vehicle for poor structural
suitability. Allerations to the vehicle have not been made and
the Prohibition Order remains.

Maotifications of 17 cases ol confemed Salmaneila
typhimurium phage type 44 were received from CDCB
implicating a food premise in EHA'S jurksdiction, Mine of these
cases consumed eggs at the premisa in guestion. During
the investigation Officers observed a serous infestation of
cockroaches, a poor standard of cleanlness, unsafe siorage
of food, unsafe food handling practices and inadequata
supply of soap ta the hand washing tacliity, A Prohibition
Order under 546 (1) of the Food Act 2007 was served,

The Prohibition Order directed the owner fo engage o pest
controdler, Improve the standard of cleanliness, ensure food
is safaly stored and handled and ensure soap & provided o
the hand washing tacility.

The tood business wes closed for an extended period

until a Certificate of Clearance was B=sued. A structural
improvemeant Notice and an Expiation Notice accounting

for three offences under 521(1} of the Food Act 2007 was
issued 1o the proprietors of the business. Whila the statistical
probsbility based on epidemiclogical analysis was extramely
high, the investigation Into the cuthreak could not definitively
canfirm the scurce of contamination,
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Graph 7 A three year comparison of the

number of Prohibtion Orders issued
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"
Audits
Food bisinesses serving food o As shown in Table 24, a total of 53
yulnerable populations, including schaduled tood salely audits and 10
hospltals, aged cars Incilties, child Tolbow-up sudits wem conductad within
care centres and deliverad meal EHA's jurisdicton during the year.
organisations are captured under Food A total of 30 audits were conducted
Safety Standard 3.3.1, This Standard outside of EHA's councll aress
requires food businessas to comply by request.
with Food Safety Standard 3.2.1,
requiring the implementation of a
documentad and audited food salaty
program (FSP)
Table 24 A three year comparison of the number of audits and follow-up audits
conducted in our Constituent Councils and other council areas
22-13 2013-14 2014-15
EHA Ofher’ EHA Othar EHA Othe

Council Council Caunel
No. of audits 48 20 52 az <83l ‘30
Mo, of follow-up audits 15 2 B 2 lﬂ T
C laint
Az shown in Table 25, EHA recaived Alleged food poisoning accounted handlers failed to ringa the food contact
a total of 112 food complaints, with for a signficant portion (26%) of food surfaces, despite the menufaciurecs
31% of these complaints proven to be complaints, which i consistant with instructions. Whilst the incomact
Justified. Thase figures are comparable the previous two years (Table 26). application of the food grade sanitser
with the pravious two years. The smail ‘ _ . . couid not definitively be related to
percentage of justified complaints may Sk complaints relating to potential the complaint, the approved process
be attributed to the limited evidenca chemical contamination of food wera waa required to preverit the potential
provided by the complainant, varied received compared to none received contamination of food.
potential sources of alleged food in the pravious two years (Table 26).
potsoning and the difficulty of cbserving  Following Investigations, ane complaint
pocr food nm"ng practices due to identified that fntbumg the application
aofficar presance. of a food grade sanitiser, the food
Table 25 A three year comparison of the number of food complaints received

201213 2013-14 201415
Number of lood complaints 117 117 112
Numbaer of food complaints justified KF:} k|
% of justified complaints ageg 30% 28%
M
—

J
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Table 26 A three comparison of the number of food complaints received

Wew of oommethint Total number of Total number of Total number of  Number of complaints

irall ; tsreceived  compiaints received compiaints roceived  justifisd/contimmad
2012-13 2013-14 201415 2014-15

Food unsuitable/unsafe

due to forsign matter 16 13 16 5

Food unsuitable/

unsafe dus to microbial 14 21 13 3

contamination/growth

Food unsuitable/

unsafe dus to presence

af unapproved or i} 0 6 1

excassive chemical

residues.

Alleged food polsoning 30 34 27 1

Confirmed food

poisaning & B 4 2

Unclean premises 7 T 6 1

Poor personal hygiene

or poor food handling 12 13 10 4

practices

Verminfinsects/pests 8 3 5 4

observed in premises

Refuse storage 14 13 19 6

Labelling issues 2 1 1 1]

Crthar 8 & 6 4

Total 117 17 112 n

Education and
Promotion

Food Safety Week 2014 wes hald from The Food Safety Weaalk initiative
Fﬂﬂd SafEty 8 to 16 November 2014, The thems was well receivad by both stalf and
Week was “Temperature Danger Zone” with a  children. Many of them were unawars
focus on keeping hot food hot and cold  of risks involved in leaving potentially
tood cold. hazardous food in unch boxes for long
periods of ima

SA Health offerad arangs of free
promotional material io EHA. In
supporting the waal, EHA visited local
primary schoots and discussad lunch
box safety with chiidren,
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Health Care
and Community
Services




SRF - Introduction

Supported Residentigl Facilities (SAFs) are
privalely owned faciliies providing persaonal
care services:and suppon 2 home-like
enviranment forf peopie N the CoOmmunity.

Tha residentz of a SRF are often aged
physicallv and/for intellectually dissbled, have
mental health lliness, substance abuse relaled
linesses-and people in need ol supporl with
daily ving. Alow level of care is provided to
residents, such as assistance with meadication
management, personal hygiene, consuming
food, and financial management, as well

a5 supplying meals and accommodation
SHAFs are regulated and licensed under the
Bupported: Residential Facilities Act 1992 (the
Ait) to ensure adeguate standarnds of care are

Licensing &

Monitoring

provided to residentsand gl residents' righls
are protected. EHA applies the objective

and principles of the Act to ensure resitients
receive reasondabie levels of nutrmtion, comfor
and shelter in a home-like environment; are
treated with dignity -and respect and recejve
Aigh quality care ina safe environment

The Minister for Communities and Social
Inclusion s responsible for promating the
objectives af the Act, and local councils
administer and enforce the Act, EHA Is the
licensing authority for all SBFEs within the five
Constitient Councils, and continues 1o acl as
the licensing authaority for SRFs within the City
of Unley, under delegatea authority.
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et SAF mdite ween
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PR SF T wfl Sharwi
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120 annual report 2014/15

- Tein

changes with portl
Fra Saiely
L]

e Pisd

[egardng nyglane
B RaEning wir

1




Graph 8 Common non-

confarmances related to the e

maintenance of the facility, SAFETY

hyguane.l F!ommamatm . "
and nutritional requirements

of menus HYGIENE

MUTRITIOMAL

AEQUIREMENTS

DOCUMENTATION

Graph 9 Hygiene issues identified
during the audits

Graph 10 Maintenance Issues identified

during the audits

@ B0% Badmoms 169% Bathrooms
@ 14% Communal Areas @ 7% Loundry

# 53% Bedrooms
@ 13% Communal Areas

25% Bathrogoms
@ 2% Laundry
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Follgwing the final quarterly audits al
each fagility, any outstanding non-
conformances wers Imposed as
conditions to the faclities’ licences.
Four facilities were issued licences for
one yaar with no conditions.

Four faciliies were issued licences

for one year with conditions. One
tacility was ssued a five manth licence
with conditions, due to ongoing and
reggouiring non-conformance and
concema. One facility was issued with
a licenca with conditions from 17 June
2015 to 30 Juns 2016, The propristors
of the latter facility requested that the
licenca ba renewed prior to 30 June
2015, due fo the expansion of the
facility. These proprietors purchasad
the neighbouring property

to accommodate a further eight
residents. The application was
reviewed and the licence was granted
by the Chiel Executive Officer undar
delegated Authority,

Twao dunl-licensed faciiities wara
re-licensed thes year lor the number
of residents receiving personal care
sarvices. Historically, these dual-
licenzad facilities ware licensed for
the total number of available residants
rather than the number of residents
receiving personal cans services.

This changs in licensing aliows EHOs
to oudit the rooms and documentaton
of regidents who are recognised
under the Supported FAesidentis
Faclities Act 1992, The independent
residents under the retirament

village model, who do not receaive
services defined under the Act,

will no longer require an inspaction

of their apartments.

There are two faclkiies that are no
longes operating 25 SAFz under the
legisiation. One premises changed
ownership during the year and changed
their business model o no longer offer
personal care services to residants.

Al services ara now provided
externally; and the facility Is no longer
an SRF as defined under tha Act.

Approval of
Manager and
Acting Manager

Four Acting Managet applications and
one Manager application were recaived
during the year.

The second facility was under
investigation by EHA for some time
due to ongoing non-confarmances.
This facHity was granted a four month
licence with conditions. The facility was
subject to on-going manitoring, with
e specific focus on staffing, nutrition,
records managemant, medication and
financial management. Prior to the
licence expiring in November 2014,
EHA linised with the Department of
Cammunities and Sockal Inclusion
{DCSI), due to the serousness of the
issues and the ongoing decline in
services provided 1o residents. DOSI,
with the approval of the proprietar,
entered and managed the facility with
the assistance of the existing manager,
DCSl essisted in the relocation of

all resicents to alternative suitable
sccommodation. The licence expired
and was not renswed.

Complaints and
Queries/Legal
Action

As shown in Table 27, thers has bean
an increasa this year in the number

of complaints received compared

to previous years. The complaints
received were In relation to the
nulritional vahue of food and the guality
of care provided to residents

tty o resident. EHOs investigated the
complamt and conducted interviews
with the proprietors of the faciity, the
glleged offender, the complainant,
the resident and a witness to the
inzident, Following the Investigation,
the identified breaches in the SRF
legisiation were communicated to

One complaint wes received hom the the proprstars.

DCSI regarding a stalf membear not

providing privacy. dignity and respact
Table 27 A three year comparison of the 2012-13 2013 - 14 2014-15
number SRF complaints received within
EHA's Constituent Councils and within g 5 13

the City of Unley
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Summary Financial Statement for D
the year ending 30 June 2015

2015 2014
INGOME
Council contributions 1.576.605 1.556.139
Shatutory charges 157.329 428,938
User charges 303,449 ar71.21
Grants, subsidies and contributions 117,983 173,147
Invesiment income 20,871 18,022
Reimbursemanis 2.867 7.718
Othar income 3883 B78
TOTAL INCOME 2,162,867 2 556,048
EXPENSES
Employes costs 1,353,867 1,480,853
Materials. contracis & other expenses 608,515 827,248
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 83,705 B3.704
Finance costs 24.018 38.545
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,070,223 2,431,351
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT]
Asset disposal & foir value adiustments - -
NET SURPLUSADEFICIT) 112,674 124,697
Other comprehensive income - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 112,674 124,687
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash squivalents T89.89M 719.815
Trade and other receivables 162,272 178,512
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 952,243 898,327
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Infrastructurs, property. plont & equipment 441.005 524,800
TOTAL HON-CURRENT ASSETS 441,005 524,800
TOTAL ASSETS 1,393,338 1,423,127
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade & cther payables 108,658 181,322
Borrowings 55,934 53,369
Provisions 256,220 251,004
Liabiiities relating o non-cumen| essats held for sale - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 400,812 485,785
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 435,198 491,132
Provisions 41.662 43.218
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 476,860 534,350
TOTAL LIABILITIES 877,672 1,020,135
NET ASSETS 515,666 402,902
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 515,666 402,992
TOTAL EQUITY 515,668 402,982

J
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€ Deon Newbery & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  aABN 30 164 612 890

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Eastern Health Authority (the Authority), which
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Staternent of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, & summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the Statement by Chief Executive Officer.

The Responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer for the Financial Report

The Chief Executive Officer of the Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations),

the Local Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011. This

rasponsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and

fair prasentation of the financial report that is free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or emor;

;ﬂa:r.ing and applying appropriate accounting palicies; and making accounting estimates that are reascnable in
circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based an our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Ausiralian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements relating fo audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable
assurance whather the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the finandial report, whether due to fraud and emor. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in order to design audit procadures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Chief Executive Officer, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for an audit
opinion.

Indepandance

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Local Government Act
1889 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and the Australian professional ethical

pronouncements.
Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairy, in all material respects, the financial position of the Eastern
Health Authority as of 30 June 2015, and its financial parformance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
and the Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations).

DEAN ERY & PARTNERS
C ED ACCOUNTANTS

7!
IM KEOGH
PARTNER

Signed on the 10™ day of September 2015,
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia 5006,

Office: All Cormespondence: T: (DB) B267 4777
214 Melbourne Street PO Box 755 F: (0B) 8239 0895
MNarth Adelaide SA 5006 Morth Adelaide SA 5006 E: admini@deannewbery.com.au

Liability limited by a schema approved under Professional Standards Legistation

124 annual report 2014/15



EASTERN
HEALTH
AUTHORITY

Ciry of o~
Wumude ~ W
P e g o

Fupiom s
i P

_/—/7

www.burnside.sa.gov.au 125



Annual Report
20715

126 annual report 2014/15

i|-||‘||| II-I 1
i| i :
||_Mﬁ

EAST WASTE




East Waste provides an environmentally respoensible,
effective collection and disposal waste and recycling
service for its Constituent Councils.

Atarget of

U 90%

of all bins are returned
upright and lids closed.
An industry first.
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We are pleased to report that after extensive research,
Adelaide Hills Council resolved to remain a
Member Council of East Waste,

! W f!--uu

.{ W ’MJ x.,

I (- | ||

i ; gﬂ‘ Lr} | IN" - m“

_H

14
vears ago GPS Tracking

introduced to all
collection vehicles
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EAST WASTE INDEPENDENT
CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT 2014/15

In this, my third year as the Independent Chair of the East Waste
Management Authority, | am very proud to be able to report on an
outstanding year for our subsidiary. We have built upon the solid work
undertaken in 2013/14 and have grown in our ambition to be a high
performing organisation delivering excellent service and good value to
our customers and our Member Councils, while providing a quality
workplace with high satisfaction levels for our staff.

In his Report, General Manager Adam Faulkner wiil
iatail more the recent customer, corporate (Council)
and staff satisfaction surveys which suppart these
guals and achimvements as weil 25 many ather
operatianal matters and successes

Annual Plan

At the end of last year Adam Faulkner Laid out
avery ambitious Annhual Plan for 200&/15 fior

East Waste which Included the devélopment af a

10 year Bleiness Plam, 2 Long Term Financial Plan,

a Business Coptinuity Plan, a Risk Management Plan
and a number of othar strategic and operational
initiatives which ehhance the effective and efficent
business of East Waste As a Board we are delizhted
that Adam and his team have delivered on the
201415 Annual Plan setting the organisation wp for
future success. Feedback recelved over the past year
indicates that the collaborative approach taken by
East Waste, together with improved communication
and extensive consultation undertaken in the
davelopment of our future plans has baen
appreciated by Member Councils,

The 205/ 6 Annal Plan was approved by the

Board and Member Coundils prioe bo the end of the
financial vear 2004/15, 1L identifies 15 priority projects
In the coming year and it promises to provide even
greater operational efficiencies, increased services

to some Member Councils (at thelr request) and
continued strong engagement and cammunication
with Couniils

0 EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015
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East Waste will measure our proactivity within

the comumunities of Member Councils and our
responsiveness 1o community demands Indeed,
v aim (o excesd community and Member Coundil
expectations in 2015016

Performance/Highlights

The Audited Financial Statements far East Waste
showed an operating surplus for the year of 5133426
afwer distributing an intesim dividend to eacn
Member Council, The organisation i in a sound
financial position with positive net equity and
sound cash resenes.

During the [atter part of 2074/15 year East Waste
undertook a tender process for recyclables and
organics processing which over the coming ten
year period will prove to be an excallent outcome
for Member Councils. in the future we expect that
an approxmate savings of 52 million per year will
be achieved by the subsidiary (approximately $20
million over the 10 year comtract periods) which will
be returned to Member Counclls. The Board have
expraszad their appreciation to Adam and his team
for a great result for all in this negotiation,

Another highlight during 2014/15 was the cutcome
of a process by the Adelaide Hills Coundl to cansider
ancther opportunity for waste services provision
aoffered ta it




To all the Directors of East Waste | thank you for your guidance, suppart
and commitment to East Waste and most particularly for the many good
decisions you have taken over the past year which have played a big part
In the subsidiary's success.

U/

years ago east Waste
and City of Burnside
introduced RFID tracking.
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EAST WASTE INDEPENDENT CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT 2014/15

We are pleased to report that after extensive

research, Adalalde Rills Coundil rasoled to remain
a Member Councll of East Waste providing stability
Lo the Subsidiary and retaining overheags for other

Member Councils i was cted by the Adelaide

Hills Council that the improved apsiational
perfarmance of East Waste, leadership, and improved
communication were important factars in its decision

Lo remam as &8 Member Council

They have helpad Lo focus the subsidiary on quality,
valug for money, engagement with our key clisnts
and a reantra of continual improvement and

afficiency throughout the East

Yiste Dusiness

e welcome new Directors Cr Karen Hockley

LCity of Mitcharm) and Cr Graham Websts;

[Corporation of the town of Walkenllle) whi

taking up those Director rofes as Member Council

representatives and will no doubt do a fine job

Operations Management

Iy his report Adam has outhned a range of

i'-r-l?".ﬁl onal matters 3I'I.'| achisvements wiich have
delivered on our promiss 1o Member Counclls. The
Board thanks Adam for his excellent leadership
of his team and hisvery tharough ang detailed
reporting to the Board. To our staff we say thanks and
done on providing our Member Councils with

excellent service, Impresing eur efficiendes and in
complementing the Member Coundls’ reputations in
sach of thair communities with high quality delivery

of services
Governance

The Board of East Waste continues ta pravide
valuable professional atdvice to the Generasl Manager
and his team. During 2075 thers have been two
changes o the composition af the Board

Mr Matthew Pears {City of Mitcham | and Cr Gianni
Busato (Corporation of the town of Walkerville) who
have given great senvice to East Wasts have retired
from their Director noles in East Waste, We thank
tham sincerely for thair significant contnbulions

CVEr TNe years.

EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT al
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To all the Dnrectors af East Waste | thank you Tor your

guidance, suppart and commitment to East \Waste
and most particularly for the many 8000 decsions

vl have taken over the past year which have played

a big part in the subsidianys success. We ook
canfidently farward 10 an even more siccessiy

year ahead

| commend the 2014-2015 Enst Waste
Annpal Report to you

Mir rior Coingheoem
independent Chairpersan
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East Waste's primary purpose is to provide effective waste collection
services for its Member Councils. The exact nature of the waste collection
services are determined independently by each Council to meet the
needs of their respective communities

tonnes of recyclables
collected in our 6 Member
Councils during 2014/15.
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ABOUT
EAST WASTE

East Waste is the trading name of Eastern Waste Management Authority
(East Waste), which was established in 1928. The Authority is a regional
subsidiary of the Adelaide Hills Council, City of Burnside, Campbelltown
City Council, City of Norwood, Payneham & St Peters, City of Mitcham,
and the Corporation of the Town of Walkerville,

These six Councils arz referred to as Member or
Constitusnt Coundils of Easl Waste, East Waste is
governed by a Charter pursuant to Section &3 of the
Local Government Act 1599 (the Chartar)

East Waste is administered by a Board in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act,
the Charter, and other various policies and codss.
The membership of the Board comprisas of seven
directors - one director appointed by each of the
Member Councils, and one independent parson who
acts as Chaer, The Board appoints a General Manager
wha is responsible for implementing the decisions
mads by the Board, and runmning the day-to-day
pperations of East Waste

EasT'Waste's arimary purposs 5 o provide effective
waste coflection services for its Member Councis
The exact nature of the waste collection services are
determined Independently by éach Council ta mest
the needs of thelr respective communities

East'Waste aperates on a cost share basis betwaen
Member Councile This ensures Councils are not
subject to providing varying levels of profit that

ars required by private sactor operators, whilst

<till benefiting afficiency, buying power and cost
effectiveness through East Waste as a senvice
prevides, Fram time to time, East Waste Is contracted
to provide waste collection services for ather
Councils (referred 1o as Client Councils),

The primary advantages from the East Waste delivery
model can be summarized as

= Approptiate economical return from the at
cost charging methodology based aon GPS
cost allocation,

+ Enhanced quality of service by maasuring and
valuing guality capatities as well as financial

Indicators

= Fexsblity in service delivery allowsng
responsivensss to emerging community and
market demantis

+ Aligned values and strategic direction with
Mamber Councils, to protect and promote
reputation management

+ Reducing sxpasure of Member Councils to
the commercial profit-driven markat

Core Services

East Wasta's core business ks defined [n the Charter
as collection, recycling, and disposal of waste
produced in the area of ane or more of the Mamber
Caunclis This core husiness ks undertaken n regard
tor the following broad understandings:

< Continually operate to the parametens set
within the Charter,

~ Deliver efficient, effective and value for maney
services fior Member Councils,

+ Maintain quality services that are quantified by
certaln metrics (i.e >90% of bins retumed
Upright to kerb with lids closed, ensuring any
hins that are tipped aver are put upright).

+ Effective and positive complaint handling and
timely resalution of complaints, and;

= Wehicles are clean, mairtained and well
presented

0 EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 n
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EAST WASTE
SERVICE AREA

ADELRIDE HILLS COUNCIL

CITY OF BURNSIDE
CAMPBELLTOWN CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF MITCHAM
NORWOOD PAYNEHAM B ST PETERS
TOWN OF WALKERVILLE

“ EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 0
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VISION
STATEMENT

AT EAST WASTE WE ARE ALL ABOUT...

"Providing a safe, high quality, low cost, waste and resource recovery
collection service that responds to our community's needs, while using
innovation and technology to drive efficiencies, reduce cost, and have a
minimal impact on the receiving environment”,

AT EAST WASTE WE ARE MOVING TOWARDS...

“Providing flexible and responsive waste and resource recovery collection
services that focus on safety, high order recycling, elevated service levels,
less vehicle movements, and lower emissions’.

AT EAST WASTE WE CONTRIBUTE T0 OUR
MEMBER COUNCIL COMMUNITIES BY...

“Providing a responsive and proactive waste and resource recovery
collection service that enhances streetscape amenity and assists in
promoting a healthy lifestyle”.

9 EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 m
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Impressively, almost 99% of community members indicated
that overall they are either fairly satisfied very satisfied or
safisfied with the collection services provided by East Waste.
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Approximately
U 30%

of Metropolitan Acelaide
S currently serviced by
the East Waste team.
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GENERAL MANAGER'S

REPORT

East Waste has had another strong year on behalf of its Member Councils
and their communities. Utilising its modern fleet of collection vehicles,
East Waste provided approximately 160,000 kerbside bin collections each
week with little incident. East Waste's internal motto of Repeatable Quality
Is evident in each bin collection, and each time we have reason to interact
with our Member Councils and their community.

Seme of the key achievements and accomplishments
are detailed in the following report but it is the effort
and attaption to detal] by the wanderfully dedicated
drivers and staff that desene the majority of plaudit

Community Satisfaction and Staff
Satisfaction Survey

East Waste conducted its first community, Council,
and staff satisfaction survey process In 2015, A
consultant was engaged 1o facilitate the confidential
process and the results indicated a broad
satisfaction with East Wasta in terms of reliability,
customer servics, yalue for money, and belng an
empioyer of cholce.

[mpressavely, almost 99% of community members
indicated that overall they are either fairly satisfied,
very satisfied or satisfied with the collection sences
provided by East Waste, When the East Waste
Member Councils were asked, over 90% are satisflied
with East Waste, while 83% of staff reporting that thay
are satisfied with their job at East Waste

The process has provided somea valuable information
in terms of community, Coundl ang staff saptiment,
and | look forward to leading the Implementation of
the consultants recommendations.

Governance and Strateqy

Feliowing a senes-of consultation sessions, the
East Waste 10 Year Business Flan 2015 — 2025 was
adopted by the East Waste Board on 11 June 2015,
Thiz Business Flan identlfies improvements and
afficiendies within the core services that East Waste

provides to Member Councits, but also enhanced
service levals that are to be investigated al the
request of Member Councils and/or the East Waste
Board, The strategic document is breken up into
prigrity projects w be delivered in year 7 (Annual
Plan), years 1- & (delivery plan) and across the entire
10 year horizon. Accompanying the Business Fan

15 3 10 Year Long Term Financial Plan which details
revenue and expenditure across the planning panod,
and an Asset Management Plan which documents
East Waste's commitment 1o responsitle callection
vehicle replacement.

T0 COMPLEMENT
THE 10 YEAR
BUSINESS PLAN, A
RISK MANAGEMENT
PLAN, FRAMEWORK
AND RISK REGISTERS
WERE DEVELOPED
AND ENDORSED BY
THE EAST WASTE
BOARD.

@ EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015
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GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

Cencurrently, & Business Continuity Policy was
adopted by the Board, raunding off a string set of
govarnance and risk mitigation documents that will
assrst the Subsidiary into the future.

Contracts

By far the largest success story of the T014/2005 year
was the joint procurement of proessing contractors
far Member Councils recyclables and oreganics East
Waste facilitated a tendering process that delivered
significant financial savings, Improved enviranmental
outcomes, and unbudzeted Intome for Member
Councils

In financial terms, the new long tarm 10 year
Contracts represent approximately 52M in savings
across the Member Counals per annum. On tap of
this, the types of materials acceptabile for recycling
have increased, and the additronal drop-off
facilities have improved East Waste's trivel ime and
productivity. These Contracts are testament to the
Subsigiary model and clear indication of the power
of joint purchasing

DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD,
EAST WASTE ALSO
ENTERED INTO NEW
PERFORMANCE
BASED CONTRACTS
FOR TYRES, BULK
FUEL AND GPS
TECHNOLOGY.

These service based contracts have saved Member
Councils In excess af 5300,000 In year 1, and resulted
in=smgnificant efficiency and administrative savings.

New Services

City of Burnside resolved in 2075 to have East

Waste conduct a 12 month trial of an "at-cali” hard
waste collaction service, while Town of Watkerille
requestad East Waste provide its street and public
place litter bin collection services, This, en top of 3
Tull year of Campbelitowr City Council's at-call hard
waste service and City of Bumside transitioning their
wasts management customer sence funclion achoss
Lo East Waste

East Waste has shown capacity and capability to
deliver these core services (o Member Councils, and
looks forward to providing the Full set of core services
to each and every Member Council in the coming
years

A5 General Manager, | ook forvard to implementing
the 2015/2M6 adopted &nnual Flan, and daliering
the prionty projects outhined in the 10 Year Business
Plan 2015 — 2025. However, the focus remans on
Repeatable Quality in the provision of collecticen
services to Member Coundils and thadr community,
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GOVERNANCE

East Waste s odministered by 0 Board in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Gowernment Act,
the Charter, and other various policies ond codes,

The membership of the Board comprises of seven
directors = one director appointad by each of the
Member Councils, and one indepeandent person who
acte as Chair, The Board FI!EZ_"-JiI‘r.l- a General Manager
wha is responsible for implementing the dedsions
made by the Board, and running the d

operations of East Waste. The Board |

y=Lo-daty

1eld eight
farmal meetings (including Special Board Maetings)
over the 2014-2015 financial year, The table below
details Board Member attendance,

BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

Mr Brian Cunningham -
(Chair) BorB
Cr Linda Green

{Adeaide Hills Council) ﬁ FH

Cr Grant Piggott

(City of Burnside)

Mr Paul Di lulio
Chiaf Executive Officar _
(Campbelitown City Cowncil) 4 (IF &

Cr Karen Hoclkdey

(City of Mitcham)

Appointed to Board 34 November 2004 4ord
Mr Mario Barone

Chiaf Executive Officer

(City of Norwood, Payneham B St Peters) 5 IF &

Cr Graham Webster
(Corpomation of the Town of Walkerilla)
Appointed to Board 24 November 2074 Fd

Matthew Pears Chial Executive Officer

(City of Mitcham)

Served on Board untll 24 November 2014 2 L
Gianni Busato Flected Member

(Corporation of the Town of Walkeville)

Served on Board umtll 26 November 2014

EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

In accordance with the requirements of the Lacal + ‘Reviewing the adequacy of the accounting, internal

Governmenl Act 1999, East Waste has an established auditing, reparting and othar financial managetment

Audit and Risk Management Commitiee The systems and practices of the subsidiary on-a

functions of the Committze include: regular basis.

- Reviewing annual financial statements to ensure The Committee held four formal mestings over the
that they prenide a timely and falr vizw of the state 204 = 015 financial vear

of affairs of the subsidiary; . "
G =3 i The Audited Financial Statements for Lhe year ending

+ Lraise with external auditars: and 30 Jure 2015 are provided at page 27

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The figure below demonstrates the governance arrangements in place to ensure diligent management of
East Wasta on behalf of the Member Councils,

MEMBER
COUNCILS BoG 2

3

BOMAD TIRECTOR: AUDIT & MSK
INDEPENCENT CHAIRFERSOR MAKAGEMENT COMMITTEE

\
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COMMUNITY

SATISFACTION

Good service delivery and customer service are a hallmark of
East Waste's services and this was reflected in the feedback from
Member Councils. This is very important to the Member Councils
and should be seen a high priority at all times.

This includes areas such as:

« Senvicing all présented bins, and replacing :50%
upright with the lids closed;

« Enstiring any bins that tippad aver are put upright,

« Effective and positive complaint handling and
timely resolution; and

+ Vehicies are clean and well presented

To emsure a contnued high tevel of customer senice
and delivery it is important to understand the needs
and requirements of East Waste's Member Councils.
constituents and stakehalders. In support of this

objective, In the 2014-2015 financial year, East Waste,

QUESTION ASKED:
OVERALL, HOW SATISFIED
OR DISSATISFIED ARE YOU
WITH ALL OF EAST WASTE'S
COLLECTION/WASTE
MANAGEMENT SERVICES?

B vervoissanseEn 0%

FAIRLY DISSATISFIED  0.6%
B susae 21,10
B romsanseen 228

B verysanisrien 54.8%

together with an external consultant, dévelopad and
disseminated a Customar Satisfaction Survey,

The resulls of the sur/ey were very positive. Overall
almost 99% of community members indicated

that they are sither satisfied, fairly satisfizd or

vary satisfied with collection services provided by
East Waste, Indezd, the majority of respondents
(54,8%) sald that they are very satisfied with wasie

man :'IEETF-'-.'H[ SeMvices

The fellowing are some highlights from the responses

recalyed:
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COMMUNITY SATISFACTION

QUESTION ASKED:
WHICH OF THE FOLLOWING WORDS WOULD YOU USE TO DESCRIBE THE
SERVICE PROVIDED BY EAST WASTE (SELECT ALL WHICH APPLY)?

PROFESSIONAL 53.2% _
SAFE 44.3% -
MESSY 3.2% I

FRIENDLY 203% [N
INEFFICIENT 08% |

MODERN 190% [

RUDE 0.0%

Qwier PUS |

ON TIHE 5% [EGN
RELIABLE 75.3%

SLow 0.0%

envinonwenraLty pesponsiole 36.4% [
NolsY 146% [}
CUSTOMER-FOCUSSED 12.7% .

HELPFUL 18.4% -
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OPERATIONS

East Waste has an established purpose built depot and office facilities
in Ottoway. This depot comprises office buildings, a wash bay and fully
equipped workshop. East Waste operates and maintains a fleet of 38
collection vehicles, and employs 41 permanent staff.

Uniquely, East- Waste prides itselfon a single quality Currently East Waste provides a broad mnge of
parfarmance measuremeant We aim to return *30% sarvices to Member Councils. This 15 summarisad

of all Blrs upright back W the kerb with the lids in the Services Matrix below, Te continue to provide
closed. This repeatable quality is unparalleled in the good value and efficiency to Member Cauncils, it is
industry. Day to day vehicle seracing, maintenance important to East Waste to offer all of these currant
and breakdown rectification s undertaken LESIng A sanvices 1o Membear Councils. This table identifies
comboination of Internal W-’JFkSHOD resources and opportunity for efficient and effectire sepnce
externat specialised oontractars offenngs currently availabla 1o Member Councils

SERVICES

“A Call” Hard Waste
Education and promation

b W III W8l Styeet/Park/Litter collection

RFID tracking

COUNCIL
Adelaide Hills Council

% 'R.I LRSI A Weekly collection of generl waste

LR S S S SR Bl Fortnightly colbsction of recyclables
bR R R Fortnishily collection of omganics
LR R N WL Food waste in organics

LRI SR G R WAl Custarner service

LS 4 Kl Rl Bin repairs/maintensnee freplacements
LU R R GFS tracking

Eity of Burmside THIAL
campbetitown City Council L4
city af Mitcham v
Tty of Norwood, Payneham & SP -
Carp Town of Walkeryille ot}
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TONNAGE DATA

Using a frontline Meet of 29 low emissicn collaction
vehicles, In 20032014 3 total of 96 736 tonnes of
househaold waste and recyclables was collected from
East Wasta Member Council households.

02,461 TONNES OF
THAT WAS SENT
FOR RECYCLING AND
BENEFICIAL REUSE.

On average, across all the East Waste Member
Coungits, that represents an imprassie 53% diversion
fram landfill. So over hall of all the matanals
presented by residents in their wheelie bins each
week was sither recycled to be wmed inko nsw
packaging materials, of composted into products W
improve sodl health in South Australia.

While some Member Councils are achieving above
B0% diversion, the averages rate of 53% s & promising
resilt but one that our communities can bulld upon,

A new waste minimisation education and promation
campaign to be rolied out in 2018 will challenge
residents to improve recycling rates sven mare

Thers is & definite environmental and financial
benafit from separating out household recyciables
and organics and piacing them responsibly in the
correct bin, East Waste, and Member Counclls, will
continug to stnve for best practice in recycling and
diversion of resources from Landfill,

KERBSIDE TONNES COLLECTED 2013/14 [ (Al L e m

ADELAIDE HILLS COUNCIL

CITY OF BURNSIDE

CITY OF MITCHAM

NORWOOD PAYNEHAM G ST PETERS
CAMPBELLTOWN CITY COUNCIL
TOWN OF WALKERVILLE

3492 3047 7634
4388 6028 7596
6291 977
3147 4421 7138
4691 6643 8993

m 1020 1415

12496°

*The City of Mitcham manages the collection of waste for its residents.
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“AT-CALL" HARD WASTE SERVICE

East Waste currently provides an efficient. cost waste collection practices often included a "city-wide’

effective and conveniant domestlc "at-call” hard waste callection on a3 nominated date, which impacted

collection sanvice for twa of its Member Councils - on the strestscapes of the respective Council area,
Campbedltown Ci I.|.r ouncil and City of Mitcham, and provided logistical challenges for the collection
utilising a purpose built hard waste collection vehicle. employess

The ‘at-call’ # Is an organisad sanvice that The ‘at-call’ service offers a better public amenity,

allows the resident to utilise the sevice at a date and better flexibility and responsiveness for the

and time that s canvenient far them, Traditional hard resident

It’s not hard to get rid
of hard rubbish.

Book your free Council collection today.

8347 5170 or eastwaste.com.au

{0 (‘
Iﬂl‘{f *"'"h-""“-
‘”“ s aarm !

Messanger Press Awareness Campaign

FOR THE 2014-2015 YEAR,

EAST WASTE UNDERTOOK 3,461 HARD WASTE
COLLECTIONS TOTALLING 620.75 TONNES ON
BEHALF OF THE CAMPBELLTOWN CITY COUNCIL,
AND 5,252 HARD WASTE COLLECTIONS
TOTALLING 963.04 TONNES ON BEHALF OF

THE CITY OF MITCHAM.

0 EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 1014-2015 m
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If June 2004 the Board recoenised Giuliana {irmmi) Pastro’s exceptianal anc
long term cantribution to East Waste.

limmi Pastro retired from East Waste on 29 july 2014, Jimni provided

34 years of servire to Fast Waste as a collection driver. [irmmi's contribution
to East Waste was significant, and he was thanked by management and
staff at a funcoon-at the East Waste Depot on Friday 8 August 2014,

tonnes of waste collected
from our 6 Member
Councils in 2014/15.
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WORK, HEALTH

a SAFETY

EAST WASTE VALUES SAFETY

For East Waste, safety is more than a policy manual or a training
session; it's how East Waste does business. It cannot be denied that

it makes good business sense to have management systems that are
designed to be suitable to the nature of the business, responsive to the
business needs and manage the business’ risks as part of ‘every-day’

operational practices.

Eant Waste fosters a culture in which safety, health
and welfare are top pricrities; and whers all staff
are responsibie for looking out for one another
Qur commitment Lo safely and care for feliow
empiovees is aimed at improved busingss results
aswell a5 business continuity and promation

of a safe workplacs

Audit results

East Waste s audited by the Local Government
Associauon Workers Compensation Scheme. This
annual audit serves to determing if East Waste

s mesting the WHS and Injury Management
performance standards for self-insured
arganisations. During the LGMYCS WHS Key
Performance Indicator Audit 2014 545 documents
were reviewed in total over a bwo day period
Eleven (11) slements were chosen to be audited,
being a sample acrass all forty six (66) elements,

Q EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 m
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AN OUTSTANDING
RESULT WAS
ACHIEVED BEING
AN AUDIT SCORE
OF 100 OUT OF 100.

This excallant result ensured East Waste raceived
the maximum possible rebate from the Local

Government Workers Compensation Scheme

The next Awdil ts dus to occar Ootober 2075




WORK, HEALTH & SAFETY

Risk Management Framework

East Waste, In conjunction wilth an external The purpoéss of this Risk Management Framework
consultant has recently completed a Risk isto provide Staff and Board Membaers of the
Management Frameawark. The Risk Managarment East Wasts, guidance in how to manags risk in
Framework includes a Businass Continuity Plan a consistent and comprehensive way.

and a Risk Managemeant Plan,

EAST WASTE RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK

EMERGENCY IT DISASTER
MANAGEMENT PLAN RECOVERY PLAN

Workplace Emergency and Evacuation Flan

East Waste's Workplace Emergancy and Evacuation + To facilitate a prompl. decisive, coordinated and
Plan (WEEF] acts as a reference scurce of useful appropriate initial response Lo an emergency
emergency-related Information for members of the -
Mergency ) .r . ) sills _“ v + To provide guidance for controlling or Lmiting
Emergency Control Organisation, being East Waste,

. i . . any negative effect that an actual or potential
and to provide guidance on immediate actians

emergency ar critical Incident could have on the

and impertant considerations In the event of an - . o
site of surrounding community

‘,—IrlFrEl’fl‘H".' situation or I:ri!il:d! rrcident n{.-urrrng
ansite + To provide a framewsork in which key persons can

develop the compstancies 1o effsctively respond

THE OBJECTIVES OF —
+ To pravide a mechanism far assuring the continued
THE EAST WASTE‘S accuraty and refevance of the Workplace
Emergency and Evacuation Flan

WEEP Is Tu PHUVI DE East Waste has an Emergency Management

Committes which meets bi-annually as part of
A MEGHAN ISM its commitment to being an Emergency Control
THAT ENABLES THE o
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WORK, HEALTH & SAFETY

Fatigue Management Policy

A care ohjective of East Waste's Annual Pian The FatEue Management Policy was endarsed by the

5 to ensure Workplace Health and Safety is Board. The key Teatures of the fatigue management

ated Inta every de r maki e5s that palicy are

2 prd
asle undertakes Activities pursued bo mest a “a 3 )
= For every 8 hours worked 2 break of 30 minutes s
this objective include the development of a Fatigue W
& Anagement Palicy

hours is o expirs belweer

k

= A minimum of 12
The intant of establishine a policy is to reduce risk

finishing work and commencing war

(further supportad by the recent completion of the

Risk Management Framework] and embed a + {utlining strategies East Waste already has in place

"SAFETY FIRST |
CULTURE AT
EAST WASTE.

pazsible fatigue relatad Bsues [suc

est breaks, drug testing, daily vehicle safety check

shieats, I.jl,lE. i "|._'1n;":£-'_—|:'-e.'|, Lraimin i, gym and the

m
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-16

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We hova been aulheriied by the enlity 1o cerily the ingncigl stotomenls in thor fingl Torm
Y DU DpEnon;

1. The accompanying linancial siclemenls comply with Ihe Local Governman! Act
1997, Local Govermmen! [Fnoncial Manogement) Regulations 2011 ond Ausiralion
Accounting Standards.

2 The Tnoncial stalements présen! o ue and folr view of e andity’s fnancal position of
30 Jure 2015 ond Iho results of it operiions ond cath llows Tof the financial yeaor,

A infemol controli implemenied by the enlify provide o remionabile cswronce mhat fhe
entily's Inoncial iecorts o complele, occulole ond reloble ond ware ellechive
throughout the linancial yoar,

4. The linancial slotements accwalely refiect the enlily's occounting and olher reconds.

Chalrman e

& september 2015
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-15

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Mote 2015 2014
§ 5

INCOME
Collection chardes 2 13,086,802 14717803
Irvestment Income 2 41725 39054
Qther Income 2 78,601 Q30,966
TOTAL INCOME 14,008,131 15,687 963
EXPENSES
Employes cosls 3 &, B3T TN 4, TH5, 168
Matenals, contracts & other expenses 3 B819.259 831073
Depreciation, amorfisation & impairment 3 17546, 292 209,033
Finance costs 3 405851 385791
TOTAL EXPENSES LER-FFREK] 15550026
OPERATING SURPLUS | (DEFICIT) 130,998 137837
Assel disposal & fair value adjustments 7007 Ti549
Income tax equivalent charge 14.574] (20,033)
MET SURPLUS [ (DEFICIT) 133,428 191,353
Transferred to Equity Statement
Other Comprehensié Income
Total Other Comprehensive Income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 133,426 191,353

The accomparying notes farm part of these financlal statements
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-15

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Hote 2015 2014
5 §
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash on hand & 2096194 1,766,027
Trade & other receivables & 258,589 3N e2s
nventories & - 4,278
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,364,783 20461930
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant & equipment 5 6,793,005 6,619,596
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 6,793,005 6619506
TOTAL ASSETS 9137788 8,761,526
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade & other payables 4] 1163,066 1.224741]
BOrrowings 2] 1,095,894 1,617,228
Provisions ] 439,025 258,858
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,701,985 3100227
NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings ] 103149 5,519,620
Provisions & 55891 120,360
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 6159.040 5,639,980
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,861,025 8,740,207
MNET ASSETS 276,763 21,319
EQUITY
Retained earnings 276,763 21,319
TOTAL EQUITY 276,763 21,319

The accompamying nowes farm part of these financial statements.
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-15

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Accumulated
Surplus Total Equity
5 5

Balance at 1 July 2014 1,319 21,319
Comprehensive income
Met surplus / (deficit) for the vear 133,426 133,426
Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to members
of the assaciation 133,426 133,426
Contributed eguity 122,18 12 0ME
Balance at 30 June 2015 276,763 276,763
Balance at 1 July 2013 (292,051) (292,051)
Comprehensive income
Met surplus [ (deficit) for the yvear 191352 191,352
Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to members
of the association 191,352 191,352
Contributed eguity 122,018 122,018
Balance at 30 June 2014 21,319 21,319

The accompamying nowes farm part of these financial statements.
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-16

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Hote 2015 2014
5 §
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipls
Operating receipts 16,092 N7 15,829,937
Investment receipls L2738 32104
Payments
Finance payments (405,851} (320,562)
Distribution to member councils (4 574) (20,033)
Operating payments to suppliers & employees (11,662 367) (12803620
Met cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2062 653 17249408
Cash flows from investing activities
Receiprs
Sale of replaced assels 1455 185,709
Capital contributed by members 122,018 172,018
Payments
Expenditure on rapfacement assets (1.992.154) (2,299125)
Met cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1798,681) {1:991,398)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts
Proceeds from bormowings 1743400 2.013.49)
Payments
Repayments af borrowings (1677208} {2.065201)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 66195 {31,n0)
Met increase (decreass) in cash held 3067 (298,200)
Cash on hand at beginning of financlal year 766,027 2 064,227
cash on hard at end of financial year 2096794 1,766,027
The accomparying notes farm part of these financlal statements
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The financial statements cover Eastern Waste Management Authority Inc s an individual entity. Eastern Waste
Management Authority Inc Is an association incofporated in South Australia under the Sa Local Government
Act 1999 and has its principal place of business al 1 Temple Court Ottoway S8

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation
This general purpose financial report has been preparst In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation,

Except as stated below, these finandial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention,

The prapatation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accolinting Standards requires the use
of cartain critical accounting estimates, and requires management 1o exercisa its judgement In applylng the
Autharity's accounting policies. The areas lnvalving a higher degres of judgement or complexily, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to

i the relevant sections of this Note,

The Local Gevernment Reporting Entity

Eastern Waste Management Autharity Inc (“The Autharity”) is a Local Govérnment Authority Section &3 Regional
Subsidiary under the cantrol of the City of Burnside, City of Norwood Fayngham & St Peters, Camphbelltown City
Council, Corporation of the Town of Walkendlle, City of Mitcham and Adelaida Hills Council, The Charer was
revigwed as required by the Local Government Act 1993 and a revised Charter was gazetted an 29 Novambar
2012, The six Member Councils have an equal eguity share and the Board comprises a Director from each
Council and an Independent Chair appointed by the absalute majority of Member Councils

Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Income s recognized when
the Authority obtains contral over the assets comprising the (ncome, of when the amount dug constitutes an
enfarceable debt, whichever flist occurs,

Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at the entity's option with an insignificant
risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, All recelvables
are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which s
considered doubtful

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

All assets are Initially recognised at cost, For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is
determined as fair value at the date of acquisition

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are anly capitallsed where the cost of acquisition sxceeds
materiality thresholds established by the Authority for sach type of asset, in determining (and in annually
reviewing) such thieshalds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life, No
capitalisation threshold 15 applied to the azquisitian of land or interests in land,
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-16

Infrastructure, Praperty, Plant & Equipment (Continued)

All material asset classes are revalued on a reguiar basts such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair vatue. For infrastructure and other assat classes where no active market exists, Tair value s
determined to be the current replacameant cost of an asset less, where applicahle, accumutated depreciation
calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of
the asset. Further detail of existing valuations, methods and valuers are pravided at Note 5.

Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically
depreciated over their pseful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of the Authority, best reflacts
the cansumption of the service patantial embodisd in those assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lhves and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.

The depreciable amaunt of alf fixed assats including building and capitalised lease assets, is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasshold
improvements are depraciated over the shorter of either the unespired period of the lease or the sstimated
uzaful lives of tha Improvements,

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assels are:
Ptant and Equipment 10% - 20%
Building and other structures 5%~ 10%

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance date, An
asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s camying amount
is greater than ite estimated recoverable amount

Gains and |osses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains
and losses are included in the income statement. When re-valued assets are sald, amounts included In the
revaluation relating (o that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Aszets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are reviewsd annuaily for
impairment Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverabla, &n impairment loss s recognised
far the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceads its recovarable amount [which is the higher of
the present valug of future cash outflows or value I use),

For assets whose future economic bensfils are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and whare
the future economic benefits would be replaced if the Authority were deprived thereof, the value in use is the
depreciated replacement cost in assessing impalrment for these asssts, a rebuttable assumption Is made that
the current replacemeant cost excesds the original cost of acquisition.

Where an asset that has besn revalued is subzequently Impaired, the impairmeant is first affset against
such amount as stands to the credit of that class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being
fecognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs in relation to gualifying assets (net of offsetting investment revenue) have been capitalised
in accordance with AASE 1723 "Barrowing Costs”, The amaunts of borrownng costs recognised as an expenss of
as part of the carrying amount of qualifying assets are disciosed in Mote 3, and the amount (if any) of intarest
revanue offset against borrowing costs in Noke 2,
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EAST WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2014-15

Payables

Creditors are amounts due to extarnal parties for the supply of goods and services and are racognised as
llabilities when the gonds and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of
Inuwaice. No Interest is pavable on these amounts:

Amounts received from external parties in advance of serice delivery. and securlty deposits held against
possible damage to the Authornity’s assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage
rginstated, or the amount is refunded as the case may be

Borrowings

Loans are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present valoe of future cash flows
associated with servicing the debt Intérest is accrued over the periad to which It relates, and is
recardad as part of "Payables”.

Employee Benefits

Liabilities for employess’ entiflements 1o salanes, wages and compensated absences expected (o be paid or
settled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at pominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts)
measured in accordance with AASE 1%

Liabilities for employes benefils nat expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to he made in respect
ol services provided by amployess up ta the reporting dale.

Mo accrual is made for sick leave as experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each reporting
pericd is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected Lo recur in Tuture
reporting pericds. The Authority does not make payment for untaken sick leave.

The authority makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Statewide
Superanniation Scheme. This particular Scheme has two typas of membarship, each of which is funded
diffgrently, No changes In accounting policy have occurded during sither the current or previous
reporting pariods.

Leases

In respect of finance leases, where the Authority substantially carnies all of the risks incident to ownership,
the leased items are initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount 1o the present value of the
minimum lsase payments. The assets are disclosed within the appropriate asset class, and ars amortised to
expense over the period during which the Authority i expected to benefit from the use of the lessed assets.
Lease payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of the [easa liability, accarding to the
Interest rate implicit in the leage

In respect of operating leases, whets the [essor substantially retains all of the risks and bensfits incident to
ownership of the leased items, lease payments are charged to sxpense over the |ease term

Goods and Services Tax

In accordance with LIG Abstract 1031 "Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax” Recelvables and Creditors
include G5T recelvable and payable.

Except in ralation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures sxclude GST receivable and
payable Non-current assets and capital expenditures include G357 net of any recoupment Amounts included
in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis,
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Competitive Neutrality

The Authonty undertakes commercial (for profit) activities being the collection and disposal of domoestic waste
on behalf of non membel councils: This non care business constitutes a significant business activity of the
Authority, as such, for the purposes of the national competition palicy, it 13 an activity to which the principtes
of competitive neatrality will apply

The Autharity recognises the objective of competitive neutrality as the intention to remowe any net compelitive
advantages from Its commercial (for profit) activities: Accordingly, the suthority is implementing principles

of competitive meutrality, [n particular tax equivalants and debt guarantee fees, where it competes with the
private sectar

These tax equivalents include:

11 payroll tax

12 stamp duty;

13 council rates;

1.4 fusl excise;

15 Weork Cover levies:

16 prevailing commercial interest rates apglicable to the purchase of operating plant:
17 debt guarantee fees, where required;

18  standard interest rates on Borrowings;

The Autharity will annually and proportionately dishurse to its member councils, the aquivalant of all of the
costs referred to above together with the eguivalent of company taxation on the net profit derived from

its commercial (for profit) activities. The disbursements made to the member councils will not and are not
intenged o be directly or indirectly retorned fo the Authority,

in bidding for the new commercial {for profit) business activities, the Authority will fully account for all costs
including all taxes, licences, fees, charges and guarantess that are applicable to the private sector operating in
the same markat place, uniess all bidders are both equally directed to go atherwise and have the banefit of all
exemplions Lo which the Authority is entitled.

The Authority has obtained and will maintain for its commercial (for profit) activities 2 prescnibed activity
license fram the Ervirenment Protectian Authonty for the collection or transport of waste from damestic
premizes an behall of non member councils.

Pending Accounting Standards

Coertain new accounting standards and WiG interpretations have been published that are not mandatary for the
30 june 2015 reporting penod and have not been used in prepanng Mese repors.

AASH § - Financial Instruments

AASE 13 - Far Value Measurament

AASH 116 - Property, Plant & Equipment

AASE 119 - Emplayes Benafits

AMSE 137 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
AASE 138 - Intangible Assets

AMSE 139 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
AASE L0 - [nvestment Properties

Standards containing consequential amendments to other Standards and Interpretations arising from the
abewve: AASE 2010-7, AASE 2014-1, AASE 2014-3, AASE J014&-4, AASE 20046-5, AASE 2014-10, AASE 20151, AASE 2015-2
and AASE 2015-3
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The Authority is of the view thal none of the above new standards or interpretations will affect any of the
Aamaounts F-u?‘-'ﬂi_‘._l'll’.i‘d in the Hl'lﬁﬂfl.ﬂ statements, bul '.hﬁ?_ ll'l.l?*f' I'I'I.T,' .r"'[l.‘.;'l |,'~"Ft.'-|i|'| il'l:'f:rITHHGI'I GinHnNIse

disclozed
Comparative Information

It has been identified thal an amendment to Comparalive income was required to cofrect an overstatement
of income in the 2013/14 finandial year of $122018. The Statement of Comprehensive income and Statement of

Cash Flows have been restated to reflect the corréct treatment of Lhe overstatement of income

As a result of the correction to income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the revised Operating

Result for 201314 has changed from a 5259 855 surplus to a 5137837 surplus:

Pravious Adjustment Hew
201312074 2013/20%%
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
income 15,809,981 {122,018} 15,687,963
Movement in Qperating Result {
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Dperating Receipts 1,846,576 1,724,908

Movement in Qperating Cash Flows

Capital Cantributed by Members . 122,018 32,018
Movement in Investing Cash Flows 122,018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
2.INCOME

2015 2014
5 5

Collection Charges
Haousshold refuse 38535 4,200,218
Administration 202812 202 812
Green organics 3,089 855 3e8938
Recyclabiles 3,970,422 4172585
Hardwaste 61775 198,927
Likter 233959 TEE,007
Waste disposa 1402234 1903576
Recycling 32236 162362
13,066,802 16 7178032

Investment Income
gank interest 42728 15194

Other Income

Bin supply L35 995 129010
Replacement bins 128,571 121,874
Sundry 264135 80,5582
82860 930,966
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
3. EXPENSES

2015 2014
5 5
Employee Costs
Salaries and wages 1 557 355 1399275
Employes entitiements expense 218,599 B8 364
Superannuation e 239,935
Workers' compensation Insurance 157.318 Q4,850
Wages casual agency staff 553,945 BE2 T3
Other BT404 60,573
423773 & FL57163
Total Number of Employess 50 45
(Full time equivalent at end of reporting period)
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's remuneration
- Auditing the financial reports 8000 8530
Board fees 23850 17400
Opeating lease rentals 28233 o
6,083 138347
Other Moterials, Contracts & Expenses
Contractors - MN9255
Disposal fees 2264 004 279788
Dumping fees 33514 350,568
Energy 25597 21903
Fuel, gas & ol FETA56 1364524
GPFS expenses 36,512
Insurance 24164 Te453
Maintenance 1522552 1,751, 3%
Legal expenses 31,976 14,063
Printing, stationery, postags & courier 33825 ATTLD
Promaotion & advertising 21,005 13813
Parts accessaries & consumables L5759 w1, 717
Frocessing costs 40,041 179150
Professional sernces Ta5164 45321
Registration & insurance - trucks 260,155 254,359
Telephans #1638 4TS5
Sorting fees 676,537 69,040
Sundry 308,785 285,064
6819176 8ynar
5879259 8310034
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
3. EXPENSES CONTINUED

015 2014

s s
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
Depreciation
Buildings & other structures 1163 AL
Plant & egulpment 1, 747129 21,870
1754292 2109033
Finance Costs
Bank charges & bill fees 224 3,999
nterest on loans 403 537 381,792
L1585 A85 791
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
4. CURRENT ASSETS

2015 204

5 5
Cash an hand
Shart term deposits 1,452,813 1,371,952
Cash at bank 43,681 £54,075
2096194 166 07
Trade & other receivables
Debtors - general 257558 370 AL0
Prepaymants gan 785
248589 INAIS
Inventories
Stores & materials - %278
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During the latter part of 2014/15 year East Waste undertook
a tender process for recyclables and organics processing
which over the coming ten year period will prove to be an
excellent outcome for Member Councils,

tonnes of organic waste
collected for residents In
our Member Counclls.
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
0. INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

At Fair Volue At Cost Acc Depn | Carrying Amount
Buildings & Other Structures 26,732 48383 (17.549) 57566
Plant & Equipment = 19,388,350 (12,826.320) 6 562,030
Total 26,732 19,435,733 (12,843 869) 6,619,596
| 2015
At Fair Value At Cost Acc Depn | Carrying Amount
Buildings & Other Structures 26,732 48,383 (24,712) 50,403
Plant & Equipment - 12,873,515 (6130,913) 6 742,602
Total 26,732 12,921,898 (6,155,625) 6,793,005
CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENT DURING YEAR
Carrying Amount Additions Disposals
New/Upgrade Renewels

Buildings & Other Structures 57566
Flant & Equipment 5,562,030 1992154 - (B4,453)
Total 6/619,596 1992154 (54,453)
Comparatives 6,541,665 2,199,125 . (112161)

CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENT DURING YEAR m

Depreciation Writeback Adjustment | Carrying Amount
Buildings & Other Structures (7163) - . 0,403
Plant & Equipment (1,7577129) - . 6,742,602
Total (1,754,292) - - 6,793,005
Comparatives (2109,033) - - 6,619,596
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
6. LIABILITIES

2015 2014
5 5
Trade and other payables
Current
Goods & services TR E38 2184
Accrued charges - employes entitlements 254 976 152,075
Accrued charges - other 157,878 130219
Other 4574 20,033
163,086 1224147
Borrowings
Current
Lease and goods martgage liabllity 1,038 835 1534 378
Loan to repay HLA 61,009 82850
1,098,854 1617228
Non Current
Lease and goods maortgage liabiiity 56546, 846 5,000,308
Laan to repay HLA 448 3073 500312
51037140 25196820
Provisions
Current
Employee entittemants (jne oncosts) 439,025 258,858
Nan Current
Employee entitiements (jne oncosts) 55,891 124,360
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
0. INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

At Fair Volue At Cost Acc Depn | Carrying Amount
Buildings & Other Structures 26,732 48383 (17.549) 57566
Plant & Equipment = 19,388,350 (12,826.320) 6 562,030
Total 26,732 19,435,733 (12,843 869) 6,619,596
| 2015
At Fair Value At Cost Acc Depn | Carrying Amount
Buildings & Other Structures 26,732 48,383 (24,712) 50,403
Plant & Equipment - 12,873,515 (6130,913) 6 742,602
Total 26,732 12,921,898 (6,155,625) 6,793,005
CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENT DURING YEAR
Carrying Amount Additions Disposals
New/Upgrade Renewels

Buildings & Other Structures 57566
Flant & Equipment 5,562,030 1992154 - (B4,453)
Total 6/619,596 1992154 (54,453)
Comparatives 6,541,665 2,199,125 . (112161)

CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENT DURING YEAR m

Depreciation Writeback Adjustment | Carrying Amount
Buildings & Other Structures (7163) - . 0,403
Plant & Equipment (1,7577129) - . 6,742,602
Total (1,754,292) - - 6,793,005
Comparatives (2109,033) - - 6,619,596
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
6. LIABILITIES

2015 2014
5 5
Trade and other payables
Current
Goods & services TR E38 2184
Accrued charges - employes entitlements 254 976 152,075
Accrued charges - other 157,878 130219
Other 4574 20,033
163,086 1224147
Borrowings
Current
Lease and goods martgage liabllity 1,038 835 1534 378
Loan to repay HLA 61,009 82850
1,098,854 1617228
Non Current
Lease and goods maortgage liabiiity 56546, 846 5,000,308
Laan to repay HLA 448 3073 500312
51037140 25196820
Provisions
Current
Employee entittemants (jne oncosts) 439,025 258,858
Nan Current
Employee entitiements (jne oncosts) 55,891 124,360
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
7. RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of Cash
Cash Assets comprise highly liguid investments with short periods ta maturity subject to insignificant risk of
changes of value Cash al the end of the reparting period as shawn [n the Cash Flow Statement is reconclied

to the related items In the Balance Sheet as follows

2015 200
5 ]
Tolal cash & equivalents 2086150 1766027
Less: short-term borrowings
Balances per Statement of Cash Flow 2,096194 1765027
Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from Operating Activities
Met Surplus [ (Deficit) 133,426 191,353
Mon-cash items in Income Statement
Cepreciation, amortisation & impairment 1,056,292 2,109,033
Net(2ain) f loss on disposals (7.002) (73,549)
Changes in Mgt Current Assets [ Liabilities
Wet movement in recevables 123,036 {377,605)
et movement in inventaries 4378 (1,362)
Hat mevemeant in trade & cther payablas {&1,005) (202143)
Het movament in provisions 115,698 381
Met Cash provided by (or used in) operations 2062883 1,724,908
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8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial instruments are calegorised as loans and receivables.
Accounting Policies. - Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits
Accounting Policy
Carried at lower of cost and net realiseabls value! intarest is recognised when earned

Terms & Conditions
Deposits are raturning fixed intarest rates between 2.00% and 2.05% (2014 2.75% and 3.25%).

Corrying Amount

Approsimates fair value due to thesharl term to maturity

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy

Liabilities ara recognised for amounts 1o be paid In the Tuture for goods and services raceived
whether Gr not billed to the entity.

Terms & Conditions
Liabilities are normally settied on 30 day terms

Carrying Amgurnt
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Interest Bearing Borrowings
Actounting Palicy
Carried at the principal amounts. intarest s charged as an expensze as It accrues.

Terms & Conditions
Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable; interestis charged at fised rates
bhetween 435% and 7.07% (2014 L80% and 707%)

Carrying Amount
Approximates fair value

Liabilities - Finance Leases
Accounting Policy
Aecounted for in accordanca with AASE 117
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Liquidity Analysis

205

Financial Assets
Cash & Equivalents
Recaivables

Financial Liabilities
Payables

Current Borrowlngs
Mon-Current Borrowings

2014

Financial Assots
Cash & Eguivalents
Recelvables

Financial Liabilities
Payables

Current Borrowlngs
Ham-Current Barrowings

Net Fair Value

Total
Due < 1 year Due > 1 year; Due = 5 years Cantractual Carrying
<5 years Cash Flows Values
2095154 2,056,194 2,096,194
LB 5R9 248589 J48 589
2344723 2384783 2344783
TJu5, 638 45,638 J45,634
1,700,074 - 100, 7% 1,038 Ba
L.975,068 1.510,859 £.484,936 5,654,856
2445, &574,068 1,510,855 8930648 7439363
Total
Due =1 year Due =1 year; Due = 5 years Contractual Carmying
« 5 years Cash Flows values
1,766,027 1,786,037 1.765,027
INE2s N ezs 3N 65
FAE LY, 1137652 FAETL. LY,
921,814 921,504 PIT,EM
2,085,075 2,085,075 1617328
5519620 519,520 5,519,530
3,006,889 5519,620 8526509 8,058 662

All carrying values appraximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognized

market for tha financial assets of the entity,

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the |oss that would be recognised if countarparties fail to perform as contracted. The

maximum credit risk on financial assets of the Authority i= the carrying amount, net of any allowance for

doubitful debts. Markel Risk is the risk that fair values ¢f financial assets will fluctuate as a resull of changes in

market prices All of Authonty's financlal assets are denomenated (n Australian dollars and are not traded on

any market, and hence neither market risk nor currency risk apply. Uguidity Risk is the risk that the Authority

will encounter difficulty in meeting abligations with financial (fabilities. 1n accardance with the model Treasury

Management Policy (LSA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of maturity dates. Interast Rate Risk

15 the risk that future cash flows will lluctuate becawse of changes \n markat intérest ratas, Mast of the

Authority's financial instrumants - both assets and liabilities - are at fived rates. Any such variations in future
cash flows will not be material in ffect on sither the Authority's incomes or expenditures
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
9. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

2015 2014
s 4
Finance Lease Commitments
Commitments under finance leases at the reporting date are as fallaws:
Mat latar than one year 1,639,065 2032673
Later than ane year and not later than 5 years 4525165 5,090,608
Later than 5 years 1510, 869 1,JE1.387
Minimum lease payments 7675 A8 8,284 B&8
Less: future finance charges [981.5958) (1rara21)
et lease (lability 6,693,740 T36,847
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
10. UNIFORM PRESENTATION OF FINANCES

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital mvestment activities of the entity prepared

on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budests and long term financial plans on the

Lame Dasis

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a comman "core’ of Mnancial Information, which enables

meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances,

2015 2014
§ 5
Income T4, 08131 15,647,953
less Expenses 13817133 15550026
Dperating Surplus [ [Deficit) 130,995 137 837

less Wet Outlays an Assets
Capital expenditire on renewal & replacement 1992154 2,299,125

of existing assets

Depreciation, amortisation & impaimmeant (1,754 292) 2709,033)
Proceeds from sale of replaced assels [71,455) {185, 704)
16&.407 4,381
Met Lending f (Borrawing) for Financial Year {35.409) 133,454
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
11. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

A new charter for East Waste was gazetted on 29 Movember 2012 Under this Charter, Directors are not paid by
East Waste and the newly appointad independent Chair s paid by East Waste. The remuneration set by the
Board is $20.000 per annum

Board Members

Mr. P Dilulio

Appointed to the Board of East Waste for a term of twa (2] years fram the date of the garettal of new chartar
2% November 2012, Reappointed in December 2074,

Cr G Piggott

Appointed to the Board of East Waste for a term of twa (2) years from 17 September 2012

Reappainted In December 2014

Mr. M Barone

Appointed to the Board of East Waste for 3 term of two (2] years from the date of the gazetral of new charter
29 Nevamber 2012, Rezppointed in December 2074,

Cr K Hockley

Appointed to the Board of East Waste for a term of twa {2) years from 25 November 2074

Cr G Webster
Appointed to the Board of East Waste Tor 2 term of twa (2] years from 24 Nevember 2004,

Cr L Gregn
Appointed to the Board of East Waste in February 2013, Reappointed in November 2014,

Mr B Cunningham
Appainted as Independent chairman of the Board of East Waste in March 2013
Reappainted in June 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
12. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The table below summarises in aggregate the remuneration of all senior management personnel and Board

Members of the Eastern Waste Management Authority Inc

Salary Super Non-<Cash Allowances ETR Total

5 % 5 5 5 s

25 128,827 13523 12,000 154,350

20n& 125,240 T2 760 12.000 150,000
Board Momber Compensation

Independant Chairpersan - 520,000 (2074 56,350)

independent Audit Committes Members - 53,850 (2014 $1,050)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
13. HIGHBURY LANDFILL AUTHORITY INC

The Eastern Waste Management Authority, originally known as the East Torrens Municipai Destructor Trust,
was established on 19 July 1928 (the name change took place in 1993),

&5 at 1 July 2004, thie Eastern Wasts Managemaent Autharity compriseéd 3 mémber Councils, belng the City of
Norwood, Payneham and St Peters, the City of Burnside and the Carporation of the Town of Walkerville.

0n S August 2004, the City of Norwood, Payneham and 5t Peters, the City of Burnside and the Corporation of
the Tawn of Walkeryille established the Highbury Landfill Authority Inc, Its purpose included the facilitation
of the closure and the post-closure of the Highbury Landfill site, as well as managing the |eint interests and
liahility of the Councils in relation to the dosure of the site

On 31 Decomber 2004 the propetty known as the Highbury Landfill site was transferred from East \Waste to
Highbury Landfill Authority Inc

On 1 jJanuary 2005 the Eastern Wasts Management Authority Inc. Charter was amended to include the three
new member Councils - the City of Mitcham, the Campbelltown City Council and Adalalde Hills Council.

On 1 january 2005 a loan was created betwaan East Waste and the Highbury Landfill Authority that répresented
the net value of assels in East Waste prior to 1 January 2005, This was an AL Call Loan and tnterest had been
capitalised until the loan was called in by the Highbury Lardfill Authority in November 2008, The loan amount
was $873,000 and East Waste borrowed the money from the National Australia Bank with an interest Only Loan
This loan has now been re-financed through the Local Gevernment Finance Authority, to be repaldin 10 years.
The Beard of East Waste resolved in February 2010 1o charge Member Councils the loan repayments for this
lean in their equity percentages a5 set out in the lanuary 2005 charter.

14. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE DATE

In accordance with AASE 110, there were no ewents subsequent to 30 Jung 2015 that need to be disclosed in the
financial statements
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CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC
CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

Ta the beit of o knowiedge ond belel, wo confm that, for the purpoe of fhae oudit of
e Authonly lor ihe yeor endod 30 June 2015, the Councll's Auditor, Dacan Newbwry L
Portness. has mainlaned i independence in occomdance with the reguiemants of 1he
Local Governmant Act 1999 ond e Local Governmon! [Fnanckal Manogement|

Regulations 2011 mode under thol Act

This siolemen! b prepored in occordance with fhe sguiremeants of Regulation Z2{3) Lecal
Govemmaen| [Fnanciol Managemenl) Regulabions 2001

it i

Pratiding Member
Audit Commiltee B

é‘s_epumn 2015
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East Waste to coptinue to provide core services to Member Council's,
and adwise Member Councils of the capacity to deliver the full range
of core services which could further dnve efficiencies and alignment
between Member Councils and East Waste,

i

tonnes sent for recycling
and beneficial reuse
during 2014/15.
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i |
It’s né‘t hard

to get rid of
hard rubbish.

Book your free Council collection today.
No need to wait for spring, we collect all year round.

Call 8347 5170 or go online eastwaste.com.au.
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WHO \S [AST W/—\STP

- A Regional Subsidiary established underthe Loca
Govarnment # 1I 09 Six .'*.’.u:?.":‘-:jlaf".'_l_a NS

o e = 5 i S | I L e ] e e (R RN -
- Purpose is to collect and dispose/racycle Member

“ouncils wastes and recyclables

- Provide approximately 180,000 services per week
Services approXimately 30% of Metro Adelaide

- Board of Directors & ndependent Chalrmar

ast Waste has a General Maneer and

47 perrr —H—_." < ﬁn Embers

- Purpose bulilt depot. fuel supply, self-sufficent
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Approximately

U Te0000

bins cullea,ted per week,

every week, each day
of the week
(bar two).

EAST WASTE

1 Tempe Court
Ottoway 56 3013
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Mansfield Park S4 5412

Phiosie 08 8347 5111
Fax 08 B250 3244
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HIGHBURY LANDFILL AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2015

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have been authorized by the Authority to certify the financial statements in their
final form. In our opinion:

#» the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act
1998 Local Govemment (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and
Australian Accounting Standards.

# the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Authority’s financial
position at 30 June 2015 and the resulis of its operations and cash flows for the
financial year.

* internal controls implemented by the Authority provide a reasonable assurance
that the Authority’s financial records are complete, accurate and reliable and
were effective throughout the financial year.

» the financial statements accurately reflect the Authority’s accounting and other
records.

e g
ICER CHAIRPERSON

CHIEF EXECUTIVE O

Date: 21 September 2015

Page 1
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Highbury Landfill Authority

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
Notes 5 s

INCOME

Interest Received 2 636 1.255
Sundry Income 2 6,822 -
Total Income 7,458 1,255
EXPENSES

Materials, contracts & other expenses 3 2,250 2,080
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 3 7,395 7,395
Highbury Closure Provision 3 490,860 199 609
Total Expenses 500,505 209,084
OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (493,047) (207,829)

Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME !493.04?! 20?.329!

This Staterment is to be read in conjunction with the atached Motes
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Highbury Landfill Authority
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2015
2016 2014
ASSETS Motes $ g
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 892,079 58,882
Trade & other receivables 4 4,234 3,305
Total Current Assets 96,313 62,287
MNon-current Assets
Infrastructure, property, plant & equipment 5 16,590 23,985
Tetal Non-current Assets 16,590 23,986
Total Assets 112,903 86,272
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payahles & 7,163 18,491
Provisions [: 171,000 131,000
Total Current Liabilities 178,169 149,491
Nen-current Liabilities
Provisions 6 4,372,000 4,091,000
Total Non-current Liabilities 4,372,000 4,091,000
Total Liabilities 4,560,169 4,240,491
NET ASSETS l"':" BTEEEEI 5411 E-I.Izﬁll
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus (4,437,268) (4,154,219)
TOTAL EQUITY (4,437,268) (4,154,219)
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Motes.
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Highbury Landfill Authority

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Accumulated TOTAL
Surplus EQUITY

2015 Motes s 5
Balance at end of previous reporting period (4,154,219) (4,154,219)
Met Surplus / {Deficit) for Year (493,047) (493,047)

Other Comprehensive Income
Member Council Contributions - Recurrent Funding of

Provision
-City of Burnside 105,852 105,852
-City of Morwood Payneham & 5t Peters 84,750 84,750
-Corporation of the Town of Walkerville 19,358 19,398
Balance at end of period (4,437,266) (4,437,268)
2014
Balance at end of previous reporting period (4,046,350) (4,048,390)
Met Surplus / (Deficit) for Year (207.829) (207,829)

Other Comprehensive Income
Member Council Contributions - Recurrent Funding of

Provision

-City of Burnside 50,406 50,4086

-City of Norwood Payneham & St Peters 40,357 40,367

-Corporation of the Town of Walkerville 9,237 9,237
Balance at end of period (4,154,219) (4,154,219}

Page 4
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Highbury Landfill Authority
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ud
for the year ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Motes $ %
Recei

Interest Received 636 1,255

GST Reimbursements 16,455 18,900

Sundry 7,504
Paymenis

Payments to Suppliers (200,498) (188,406)
Met Cash provided by {or used in) Operating Activities ’ (176,903) (168,251)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Met Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Recei

Member Council Contributions 210,000 100,000
Met Cash provided by [or used in) Financing Activities 210,000 100,000
Met Increase (Decrease) in cash held 7 33,097 (B8,251)
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period Tla) 58,982 127,233
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period Tia) 92,079 58,982
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

Page 5
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Highbury Landfill Authority
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2018

1: TEMENT OF Fl A T P

This general purposs financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to not-for-
proifit entities, other authoritative prencuncaments of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Inberpretations and rebevant South
Australian legiskation

Highbury Landfill Authority (the Authority) is @ Regional Subsidiary undar Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the Local Governmant Act 1995,
The: Member Councils and their respective percentages of equity are as follows:

‘Constituent Council Equity S .
City of Bumsida 50 406%

ity of Morwood Faynaham & St Paters 4035 %
Corporation of the Town of Walkerville EFET

The firancal report was autharised for Esue by certficate under clause 11 of the Local Government [Financial Management] Regulalions
2011,

The folowing is a summarny of the material accounting policies adopted by the Authority in the preparaion of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistantly applied, unleas otherwise slated.

Basis of preparation
Reporting Basls and Conventions

The firancel report has been prepared on an accnuals basis and i based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selecled
non-cument assets, and financial assets and financial labities for which the fair value basis of accourting has been applied.

Accounting Policies
|a) Competitive Neutrality

Ther Authority does not undertake commaerncial for profl) acthities

The Authority holds an Environmantal Autharisation under Part & of the Envirenment Protection Act 1993, The EPA Licence number
B EPA15145 and this licence was renewed on from 31 July 2001,

(b} Property, Plant and Equipmant
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carmied at cost o fair value less, where apphicable, any accumulated depreciation and
impairmaent losses

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment kasses,

Ther cauryiing amount of plant and equipmant is reviewed annually by the Beard of the Authority to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amourt rom thesse assets.

Depreciation
Thea dapreciable amount of all fived assets including building and capitalised lease assets, is depreciated on a diminishing value basis

aver thiir uselul lives commencing from the time the asset i held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shortar of eithar the unexpined period of the lease or the estimaloed useful lives of tha imprcvemants.

The depreciation rates used for each class of dapreciable assels ana:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Plant and equipment 20%

Ther assats” residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, f appropriaie, at sach balance date

An aszel’s camying amount is writhen down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s camying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and lpsses on disposals are determined by comparing proceads with the carmying amount. These gains and lesses ane included
in the incoma statemant. Whan re-valued assets are sold, amounts incleded in the revaluation relating to that asset ane transfemed to
ratained eamings

Page NE
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

MENT 1
(] Impairment

Aszets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject 1o depreciation and are reviewed annually for impainment. Assets thal are
sulbject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying ameunt
may nold be recoverable, An impairment lbss is recognised for the amount by which the assefls carrying amount exceeds its
recaoverabe amount {which is the higher of the presant value of future cash cutflews or value in usa)

For assets whose future aconomic banelits ane not dependant on the ability to ganerate cash flows, and whare the
future economic benefits would be replaced if the Authority were deprived thereof, the value in use is the depreciated

P cost. In ing impairment of these assets, a rebuttable assumption i made that the cumant
replacement cost exceeds the enginal cost of acquisition.

{d} CGash And Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash Assels inchede all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Authority’s option with an insigrificard risk of changes in valua
with o marturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition

Raceivables for rates and annual charges ane secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates determinad in accordance with
the Local Governmend Act 1239, Dther receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear inferest

All recaivables are reviewed as at the reponting dabe and adegquate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is considered
doubtful.

All financial instrumants ane recognised at foir valee at the date of recognition.

() Investments

Invesiments represent monies on deposil at twenty-four hour call and on fiwed deposit for twebse monkhs or less.

|f} Revenue

Intzrest revenue s recognised on a propodtional basis taking inlo account the inlerest rates applicable io the financial assats,

{g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Ravenues, expendes and assets ane recognised net of the amount of GST, exeepl whare the amount of GST incwuired is nat
recaverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the G5T is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
aszel or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of G3T.

{h) Comparative Figures
Whaen required by Accounting Standards, compamtive figures hove been adjusted le conform to changes in presentation for the
curment financial year,

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Their Authority evaluates estimates and judgements incorporated inta the financial repor based on Mstarical knowledgs and best
availnble cument information. Estimates assume a reasonable oxpectation of fulure gvents and ane based on currend trends and
economic data, obtained both extemally and within the association.

Going Concern Basis

The: Board of Management of HLA notes the accumulated defict of $4,437 266, including a working capital deficiency of $81,856. The
Autherity is required to manage the post-clasure of the Hightury landfill and the Authority has a statutory guarantes from s Member
Councils to meet all imancial obligations and accordingly has prepared the financial stalements on a going concem basis,

R
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Highbury Landfill Authority
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014
Mabes $ $
NOTE 2: INCOME
Operating Activities
Interest Income 636 1,255
Sundry Income 6,822 -
7,458 1,255
NOTE 3: EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration 2,250 2,080
Depreciation
Plant & Equipment 7,395 7,385
Highbury Closure Provision
Mowvement in Provision 6 440,860 169,608
490,860 199,609
MOTE 4: CURRENT ASSETS
Cash on Hand and at Bank 76,053 43,495
Investments in LGFA 16,026 15487
GST Receivable 4 234 3,305
95,313 62,287

Page N8
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 20 June 2015

Note 5 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

2014 2015
AT FaiR ACCLIM CARRYING AT FAIR - ATTLIM CARRYING
WALLIE AT CosT DEFM AMOUNT VALLE AT O8I DEP'N AMOUNT
] 3 ] ¥ ] § § ]
Land 1,800 - 1,800 1,800 - 1,800
Flanl & Equiprrant 78,090 {55,805) 22,185 TE080 (63,300) 14,790
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT & 79,880 (55, 805) 23985 THEND 163.300) 16,590
EQUIPMENT
Camparativis 7R85 (48,570 J1 380 T3.800 (55 305] 135885

Page N9
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Mote & - LIABILITIES

2015 2014

5 5 5 ]
TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Hotes Current Non-curment Current Nes-current
Goods & Services 7,168 - 18,491 -

7.169 - 18,491 -
PROVISIONS
Provision for Highbury Post Closure 171,000 4372000 131,000 4,091,000

171,000 4,372,000 131,000 4,051,000

Moverments in Provisions - 2015 year oy
{eurrent & pom-currant)
Cypaning Balance 4,222 000
(Less) Paymenis recorded and accrued 3 (165, 860)
Aad (Less) Remeasuramant Adjustments 3 430, 860
Closing Balance 4,843,000

The Awthonty has an ongoing obigation under its EPA hcence fo manage the posl-closure phase for the landhil
for at feast 25 years. A provision for the Highbury Landfill closure has been acorued. A net present valie (NPV)
cafctiiation has then bean made by esfimating cash flows fo manage the Highbury site in accordance with its
EFA licence for a 25 year period commencing 1 July 2008 The cash outflows have been escalated at an inflation
forecast of 3% per annum and the discount rate used is equivalent to the 10 year Commonwealth Bond rate -
ingdicative mid rate 30 June 2015 adjusted to 30 June balance dates. This NPV calculalion has been incorporafed
into the provision and represents the Authorty's best esfimate of its future labilty to manage the Highbury
Landfil post-closure phase.

in 2012 the Board of the Highbury Landfill Authorily resofved fo have the cash flow estimales and assumptions
in the provision spreadsheet reviewed by Golders Associates. Their summary conclusion was that the provision
appears fo be reasonable based on available information

The Audit Committes of the Highbury Landfil Authorty has recommended that the provision be reviewed annually
and that the provision be independently reviewead every 3 years. It has bean reviewed in 2015 by Golder Associates,
with fhe next review is schedulad for 30 June 2018

Golder Associates have based their Post Closure provision estimaltes on the Authorily having a further 21 year
maonitoring obligation

Page N10
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Highbury Landfill Authority
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 7 - RECONCILIATION TOSTATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
{a) Reconciliation of Cash
Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short penods to maturity subject to insignificant risk
of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is
reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:
20156 2014
Hotes % 5
Cash at Bank 76,083 43 455
LGFA Investment A/C 16,026 15 487
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 92,079 58,982
(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
from Operating Activities

Net Surplus (Deficit) {493,047) (207 .829)
Mon-cash items in Income Statement

Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 7,395 7,395
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Met increase (decrease) in frade & other payables (11,322) 13,537

Met increase (decrease) in other provisions 321,000 17,000

Met (increase) decrease in other assets (929) 1,646
Met Cash provided by {(or used in) operations (176,903) (188,251)

Page N11
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

MNote 8 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED
IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The folloming assets and liabiliies do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position but
knowledge of those items is considered relevant to user of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions
about the allocation of scarce resources

PERFORMAMNCE GUARANTEE

The Authority has provided the following performance guarantee to the following entity:
Environment Protection Authority $25,000

The Highbury Landfill site i managed in accordance with an approved nsk management plan that has been
incorporated into the EPA licence for the site. The EPA guidelines indicate an initial 25 year period for the post-
closure over this penod. The MNPV calculation is the Highbury Landfill Authority's best estimate of the cash
outflows over this penod to maintain a satisfactory nsk profile for the site and adhere o the EPA licence

If however, the risk profile changes on the site then the Authonty will be required to expend significant money to
restore a satisfaclory risk profile that has not been included in the provision. Similary if steady stale conditions on
the site are not reached at the end of the 25 year period then the Authonty will need to incur additional
expancitura to mange the site and these costs are not included in the post-closure provision

Page MN12
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Highbury Landfill Authority

MWOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Al financial instruments are categorised as loans and recelvables.
Accounting Policies - Recognized Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Accounting Palicy: Carried at lower of cost and net realisable value; Interest is recognised when sarned,
Short Term Deposits

Terms B condilions: Deposts are retuming fixed interest rates bebesen 2.0% and 2.4% (2014 2.5% and
2. T5%).

Carrying amount: approximates fair value due to the short lerm o maturity
|Receivables - Fees & other Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful
charges dobis ks recognised (and re-assessed annually) when collection in full is no longer probatbile.

Terms & condilions: Unsecured, and do not bear interesi. Although Coundl s not malerially exposed to any
individual deblor, credit risk expesure S concendraled wiathin the Council's boundaries.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value (after deduction of any allewance).
|Liakilities - Creditors and Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and senvices recaived,

Ancruals wihelher or nat billed to the Council.
Terms & conditions: Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.
Carrying amount: apgroximates fair value.
Liquidity Analysis
Duwser > 1 yoar; = 5 Tatal Conbractual
2015 Due < 1 year wsars Due = 5 years Cash Flows Camying Valuas
Financial Azsets 5 5 5 5 5
Cash & Equivalents 92,079 92,079 92,079
Receivables 4,234 4,234 4734
Tatal 96,313 96,313 96313
Ei N
Payables 7,169 7,169 7.1648
Tatal 7,169 7,169 7.1648
Hot Inflow [Outfiow) 89,144 83,144 §9.144
Due > 1 year;, =5 Total Contractual .
2014 Due < 1 year yours Due > 5 years Cash Flows Camying Values
Financial Assets 3 1 5 5 3
Cazh & Equivalents 58,8982 58,982 58,882
Receivables 3,305 3,305 3,305
Tatal B2.207 B2.207 B2.087
Financial Liabiliti
Payables 18,491 18,491 18,481
Total 18,491 18,491 18.491
Het Infl Q 43,796 43,796 43,796

Net Fair Value

Al carrying values approximate fair value for all recegnised financial instruments. There is ne recognised market Tor the financial assots of the
Aushosity

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised i counterparties fail to pedform as contracted, The maxirmum credit risk on financial
assots of the Authority i the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful dobis. Al autherity imvestmants are madae with the SA Local
Government Finance Authority and are guarantead by the SA Government. Except a5 detadad in Motes 4 in relation to individual classes of
receivables, exposure is concentrabed within the Autherity’s boundaries, and there is no material exposure lo any individual deblor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuale as a result of changes in market prices. All of the Authority's financial
assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence neither market risk nor cumency risk apply.
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 10 - UNIFORM PRESENTATION OF FINANCES

The following is & high level summary of both operating and capital investment activilies of the
Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term
financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’ of financial information,
which enables meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances

20186 2014
$ s

Income 7,468 1,255
less Expenses 500,505 209,084
Operating Surplus [ (Deficit) (493,047) (207,829)
less Net Qutlays on Existing Assets

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 7,395 7,395
MNet Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year (500,442) (215,224)

Page N14
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 11 - EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no events subsequent to 30 June 2015 that need to be disclosed in the
financial statements.
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Highbury Landfill Authority

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Mote 12 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position but
knowledge of those items is considered relevant to user of the financial report in making and evaluating
decisions about the allocation of scarce resources

1. POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES

The Authenty insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is
subject to a deductible "insurance excess”, the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance

The Authenty has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on
average historical net cost (including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not
reported to the Authority may have existed at reporting date

2. LEGAL EXPENSES

All known costs have bean recognised

Page N16
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HIGHBURY LANDFILL AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2015

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit
of Highbury Landfill Authority for the year ended 30 June 2015, the Authority's
Auditor, Dean Newbery & Partners, has maintained its independence in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Govermment
{Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3)
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

~ Trevor Hockley(/ /<77 CrJohn Minney =~
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER | PRESIDING MEMBER
|/ AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date: 21 September 2015
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@ Deon Newbery & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  ABN 30 164 612 880

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 22 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 to the Highbury Landfill Authority.

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the Highbury Landfill
Authority for the year ended 30 June 2015, | have maintained my independence in
accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5)
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011

SAMANTHA ALLARD
PARTNER

Signed on the 237 day of September 2015,
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia 5006.

Oifice: All Cormespondence: T: (D) B267 ATTT
214 Malbourne Strest PO Bax 755 F: (08) 8220 0BOS
Norih Adedaide 54 5006 Horih Adelalde SA 5006 E: admingDdaannowbsry. com.au

age 18

Liabdlity limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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@ Deon Newbery & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMNTS  ABN30 184 612 850

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HIGHBURY LANDFILL AUTHORITY

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Highbury Landfill Authority, which comprises the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015 and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement af
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the Certification of Financial Statements.

The Responsibility of the Executive Officer for the Financial Report

The Execulive Officer of the Highbury Landfill Autherity is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial repert in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounling
Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1899 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
2011, This responsibility Includes designing, implementing and maintaining Internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentalion of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based en our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with Austrafian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
athical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and parform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ameunts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud and eror. In making those risk assessmanis,
the auditor considers inlernal control relevant to the enlily's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal confrol. An audit also inciudes evaluating the
approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Executive Officer, a5 well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for an audit
opinion,

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Local Government Act 1998
and Local Government (Financial Managemenl) Regulations 2011 and the Australian professional ethical
pronouncements

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinlon, the financial report presents fairdy, In all material respects, the financial position of the Highbury
Landfill Autherity as of 30 June 2015, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended In
accordance with the Local Government Act 1998, Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
and the Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations),

DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

IVY.>

SAMANTHA ALLARD
PARTMER

Signed on the 237 day of Seplember 2015,
al 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia 5006,
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